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OFFICE AND TREATMENT PLANT:  2500 PITTSBURG-ANTIOCH HIGHWAY, ANTIOCH, CA 94509 

TELEPHONE:  (925) 756-1900    ADMIN. FAX:  (925) 756-1961    TECH SVCS. FAX:  (925) 756-1960     MAINT. FAX:  (925) 756-1963 
 

December 11, 2013 

 

To the Ratepayers and Board of Directors of Delta Diablo Sanitation District (DDSD) 

Antioch, California 

 

Subject: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, For the Fiscal Year Ended (FYE) June 30, 2013 

 

We are pleased to submit the District’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year 

ended June 30, 2013.   

 

The responsibility for both the accuracy of presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, 

including all disclosures, rests with the District’s management based upon a system of internal controls. The 

objective of the District’s internal control systems is to provide reasonable assurance, rather than absolute 

assurance, that it is safeguarding its assets against loss and that the financial statements have been recorded in 

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Reasonable assurance recognizes that the 

cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and that the valuation of costs and benefits 

requires estimates and judgments by management.  To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data 

are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position 

and results of District operations. Included are all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the 

maximum understanding of the District’s financial affairs.   

 

California statutes require special districts to have an annual audit conducted by independent certified public 

accountants.  The audit firm of Maze & Associates conducted the District’s FYE 2013 annual audit and has 

rendered an unmodified (“clean”) opinion of the financial statements.  The independent auditor’s opinion report, 

which is first component of the CAFR financial section, concluded that the District’s financial statements for 

the year ended June 30, 2013 present fairly in all material respects its financial position and is in conformity 

with GAAP. 

    

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis report (MD&A) is presented by the District following the 

independent auditor’s opinion to provide an introduction, a narrative overview and analysis of the District’s 

basic financial statements.   This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read 

in conjunction with it. 

 

D I S T R I C T   P R O F I L E 

 

Delta Diablo Sanitation District (District) is a special district in the State of California that was originally 

formed in 1955 as Contra Costa County Sanitation District No. 7-A, pursuant to the California Health and 

Safety Code Section 4700 for the purpose of operating, maintaining and constructing sewage collection and 

treatment facilities in the West Pittsburg (now called Bay Point) area.  In the early 1970s, the California State 

Water Resources Control Board adopted a policy of encouraging public sewage agencies to consolidate on a 

sub-regional basis.  In 1976, the Cities of Pittsburg and Antioch were annexed to the District. The District’s 

service area is divided into three zones located in Contra Costa County: Zone 1 – Bay Point, Zone 2 – Pittsburg, 

and Zone 3 – Antioch.  It is governed by a three-member Board of Directors with one member appointed to 

represent each zone.  The District’s Board of Directors is comprised of the Mayor of the City of Pittsburg (or 
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designee) and Mayor of the City of Antioch (or designee), and the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisor 

member representing Bay Point, which is un-incorporated.           

 

The District has five core programs/services: Wastewater, Recycled Water, Household Hazardous Waste, Street 

Sweeping and Bay Point Collections.   

 

Wastewater Program. The Wastewater program’s primary purpose is to protect the health of the public and the 

environment by collecting and effectively treating wastewater.  It currently serves a population of over 190,000 

residents as well as commercial and industrial customers in a service area of approximately 52 square miles.  

Operating 24 hours a day, 365 days a year, the District is permitted as a secondary wastewater treatment facility 

at 16.5 million gallons per day (MGD).  

 

Recycled Water Program. Since 2000 the District has been operating one of the largest industrial recycled 

water plants in California.  Generating six million gallons each day, this recycled water facility is rated for 12.8 

MGD and utilizes a state of the art computerized Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system.  

Recycled water produced at the District is used for cooling at two power plants, as well as landscape irrigation 

at several parks, city offices and golf courses in Antioch and Pittsburg. The use of high quality recycled water 

for industrial and irrigation applications provides an alternative source of water that is not only more cost 

efficient than tap water and promotes water conservation, but is also an environmentally sound recapturing of 

water resources rather than discharging the treated water directly to the Delta, rivers and oceans.  

 

Household Hazardous Waste Program.  The District operates the regional Delta Household Hazardous Waste 

Collection Facility.  The facility is located adjacent to the District’s treatment plant and was established to keep 

pollutants out the sewer system as part of the District’s Pollution Prevention Program. Free of charge for 

residents and small businesses in East Contra Costa County, the Facility accepts household hazardous wastes 

such as medications, used oil and filters, anti-freeze, paints and stains, batteries, fluorescent and high intensity 

lamps, cosmetics, pesticides, pool chemicals and household cleaners, cooking oils and grease, computers and 

televisions.   

 

Street Sweeping Program.  Street sweeping is another pollution prevention service offered by the District.  One 

of the best ways to prevent pollutants from entering local waterways is to remove them from streets before wind 

and rain carries them into storm drains.  Regular street sweeping provides a clean appearance throughout 

neighborhoods attracts businesses to downtown areas and helps the region comply with State and Federal 

regulations related to the Clean Water Act. 

 

Bay Point Collection Program.  In 1984, the District assumed responsibility from Contra Costa County for the 

West Pittsburg (Bay Point) collection system.  Services provided for this system consists of cleaning, 

inspection, and maintaining 43 miles of sewer lines that transports untreated sewer water to the treatment plant 

for processing.  Both the cities of Antioch and Pittsburg maintain their own collection systems.    

  

F A C T O R S  A F F E C T I N G   F I N A N C I A L  C O N D I T I O N   

 
Local Economic Condition and Outlook 
The District is located in the heart of the California Bay Delta region at the eastern end of the San Francisco 

Bay Area, in Antioch, California (see District location map). The three communities served by the District, Bay 

Point (un-incorporated), Antioch and Pittsburg are located along California State Route 4, that connects San 

Francisco to Stockton and the rest of the Central Valley of California.  The District’s service area covers about 

52 square miles and services a total of 193,000 plus residents. The City of Antioch is the third largest city in 

Contra Costa County and has the largest estimated population of the three communities served with more than 

106,000 residents.  The City of Pittsburg is the second most populated city served by the District with an 

estimated population of 66,000 residents.  Bay Point is the smallest among the three communities served with 

an estimated population of 21,000.      
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The local economy has shown some signs of recovery, specifically in the job and housing markets.  Contra 

Costa County’s unemployment rate has improved to 7.3% from 9.4% for the previous year.  The weighted 

average for unemployment based on population estimates for the District’s service area has improved, however 

remains elevated at 9.4%, compared to Contra Costa County as a whole.  The housing market has moderately 

improved in the region due to lesser inventory, relatively low mortgage interest rates and moderately higher 

demand.  With that said, overall recovery is expected to be relatively slow, consistent with the rest of California 

and the United States (U.S.).   

 

The District as an enterprise fund based entity is primarily supported by its service charges, which accounts for 

over 91% of its operating revenues.  Service charges, the District’s largest source of revenue has been growing 

at a steady pace despite the challenges presented by the slow economy.  This moderate increase is due to a 

combination of moderate growth and slight increase in rates approved by the District’s Board.  The District 

participates in California’s alternative method of apportionment called the Teeter Plan.  Under the Teeter Plan, 

the county advances property tax and other levies to the District based on the total tax levy and not based on 

collections.  Contra Costa County assumes the risk of delinquencies and in turn retains the penalties and accrued 

interest.  Decreases in assessed property values affect the District’s portion of the 1% property tax revenue; 

however this revenue is not used to fund operational costs. Growth and development in the District’s service 

area has started to show some signs of recovery, however still relatively low compared to historical norms prior 

to the recession of 2007, affecting the District’s capacity/connection fees. Additional information regarding 

Revenue Capacity is included in the Statistical Section of this report.      

 

Consistent with the continued market downturn, the District’s investment income will likely experience 

decreases compared to last year.  However, due to the District’s laddered investment and diversification 

strategy, the District’s portfolio yield is expected to decrease at a slower pace.  Any market gains or losses will 

affect the District’s reserve fund investments and Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) trust fund.       
 
Budget and Long-term Financial Planning 
The District’s highest executive officer is the General Manager, who is appointed by the Board and has over-all 

responsibility of managing the District’s operations. The General Manager is assisted by the Deputy General 

Manager and three Department Directors: Business Services, Engineering Services and Operational Services.  

Budgetary control is maintained at the Department level for Operations and Maintenance budgets, whereas 

budgetary control for Capital expenditures is maintained at the project level. Staff conducts periodic and formal 

mid-year budget reviews and makes recommendations to the Board as needed. 

 

The District has a three-year operating budget cycle and a five-year Capital Improvement Program budget.  

Both budget documents are updated and presented to the Board for adoption annually. 

    

Major Initiatives  
 

Major initiatives, primarily capital projects undertaken by the District include: 

 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Primary Influent Pipeline Repair.  This project is designed to repair  

approximately 140 linear feet of deteriorated 42-inch primary influent pipeline by trenchless installation of 

cured-in-place pipe liner.  The project also included concrete repair and coating work in the aerated grit 

chambers, concrete repair and coating work in the metering junction channels, replacement of four 30-inch  

sluice gate assemblies, concrete coating work in the primary clarifier distribution structure, and inspection of 

four 30-inch diameter clarifier influent pipelines.  The project work involved flow control/bypass pumping from 

upstream of the plant influent meter to discharge at each of the four primary clarifier centerwells.  The existing 

facilities were significantly deteriorated, and with completion of this work, will extend its service life and 

increase reliability with application of corrosion-resistant materials and protective coatings.  This type of project 

increases and maintains the plant’s service capability and reliability. 
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Pittsburg & Antioch Pump Station VFD Replacement.  This project work included complete replacement of 

the four 250-hp variable frequency drives (VFDs) at Pittsburg Pump Station and two 400-hp VFDs at Antioch 

Pump Station.  The purpose of the work was to replace equipment which was at the end of its useful life. A 

variable frequency drive is used for adjusting a flow or pressure to the actual demand. It controls the frequency 

of the electrical power supplied to a pump. Significant power savings can be achieved when using a VFD. 

 

Conveyance & Treatment System Reliability Improvements. The Conveyance and Treatment System 

Reliability Improvements project will develop a baseline conveyance system asset list and a risk assessment 

tool.  This tool will be used to evaluate and prioritize system inspections for renewal and replacement of 

wastewater conveyance system assets based on the risks and consequences of failure.  The work activities 

include development of condition assessment protocols and visual inspection as well as condition assessment of 

existing facilities identified as the highest risk/consequence priority.  The work will also include field inspection 

and vulnerability assessments at the District pump stations and flow equalization facilities.     

 

Aeration System Improvements (Construction). This project converted the aeration basins from mixers to fine-

bubble diffused air.  Turbine blowers were installed with variable frequency drives and the District converted an 

existing building space to a blower room.  The project will improve the operation, reliability and efficiency of 

the aeration basins, which is critical to the wastewater treatment process.  It will result in increasing the plant’s 

overall treatment capacity without additional major investments.   

 

A W A R D S  A N D  A C K N O W L E D G E M E N T S 

 

Awards 
 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate 

of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Delta Diablo Sanitation District for its Comprehensive 

Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.  This was the first year that the 

District has achieved this award. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award, recognizing 

conformance with the highest standards for the preparation of state and local government financial reports. In 

order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently 

organized comprehensive annual financial report.  This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting 

principles (GAAP) and applicable legal requirements.   

 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive 

annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements, and we are 

submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.      

 

The District’s dedicated staff continued to be recognized at the local, state and national levels with awards 

received during the 2012/2013 year, including: 

 

Platinum Peak Performance Award 9 - National Association of Clean Water Agencies (NACWA). This 

award acknowledges public wastewater treatment facilities for 100% operating compliance with the United 

States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations for its National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 

System (NPDES) permit over a consecutive nine-year period. This sustained level of excellence achieved by 

less than 2% of wastewater treatment plants nation-wide.  

 

Plant of the Year Award 2012 (State and San Francisco Bay Section)- California Water Environment 

Association (CWEA).  The District was recognized as the CWEA State and San Francisco Bay Section 

Treatment Plant of the Year for 5-20 MGD (million gallons per day) size plants.  This award is the third CWEA 

State level award received by the District in the past five years and is unprecedented in the industry.  It 

recognizes the combined efforts of all Districts employees and further displays the high quality of service that 

the District’s rate payers receive.  It demonstrates a superior level of esprit de corps and the proactive “can do” 
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attitude of the District’s employees. This award confirms the commitment that the District and its employees 

have made to its regional Mission and Vision as a national leader. 

 

2012 Operator of the Year Award – California Water Environment Association (CWEA) San Francisco Bay 

Section.  This award recognizes Leonard Pompa’s excellence in the operation of a wastewater treatment facility.  

Mr. Pompa works closely with the operations staff in analyzing plant processes to improve and optimize the 

plant performance.  Mr. Pompa has demonstrated a strong work ethic and is the first to step-up when 

challenging operational upsets occur.  This award also reflects his mechanical aptitude and creativity in making 

the workplace safer and more efficient. 

 

2012 Mechanical Technician of the Year Award – California Water Environment Association (CWEA) San 

Francisco Bay Section.  Gary Van Pelt was recognized for his contributions by his peers because of his 

outstanding performance, and impressive technical skills in Maintenance.  Mr. Van Pelt is able to effectively 

analyze equipment performance and develop effective action plans to maintain the performance and reliability 

of the District’s equipment.  His efforts have contributed to the District’s achievement of the Platinum Peak 

Performance Award 9. 

 

 
 
Excellence in Procurement Award 2012 – National Purchasing Institute (NPI).  This award recognizes 

organizations that demonstrate excellence in procurement and is designed to measure innovation, 

professionalism, e-procurement and productivity of the procurement function.  This is the third consecutive year 

the District has received this award.  The District is one of only 40 government agencies in California and one 

of twenty-six special districts in the United States to receive this award. 

   

Human Resources Agency Award for Excellence 2013 – Western Region Chapter of International Public 

Management Association-Human Resources (WRIPMA-HR). The District was selected as the winner of the 

Agency Award in the small agency category which is defined as having less than 500 employees.  WRIPMA-

HR recognized the District’s forward thinking process to address the District's unfunded liability for Other Post-

Employment Benefits (OPEB) and pension reform in a way that was fair and equitable to both employees and 

ratepayers.  By working collaboratively with its three bargaining units, labor-management relations between the 

District’s Board and employees have been strengthened and labor stability at the District has been preserved. 

 

Acknowledgements 
Special thanks to the Finance Division for their daily dedication and commitment that resulted in a “clean audit” 

which made the submission of the District’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report possible.  Sincere 

appreciation is extended to District staff that has contributed information contained in this document.  

Acknowledgement also goes to Maze and Associates for their objective review of this report.  Finally, 

recognition is given to the District’s governing Board for its continuing support in adopting sound fiscal policies 

and best practices assisting staff in managing the District’s resources and financial affairs prudently.  

Mr. Van Pelt (L-R) working with his peers 

(R. Tamborski and L. Velarde) repairing an 

impeller for a sewage pump. The 

Maintenance Division’s mission is to safely 

and effectively manage, maintain and repair 

the District’s plant assets including 

infrastructure, equipment and machinery.   
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Vision                

Delta Diablo Sanitation District is a highly respected organization in our community and the environmental industry, 

for the quality and capabilities of its employees, for its strong commitment to core values and customer satisfaction, and 

for its ability to define and embrace the best practices of the industry. 

 

Mission                

Delta Diablo Sanitation District will achieve its vision by: 

 

 Fostering a culture that promotes trust through open and honest communication 

 Maintaining and enhancing a supportive environment that fosters professional growth, team work, and 

workplace satisfaction 

 Operating and maintaining its facilities in a safe, sound, efficient, and effective manner 

 Improving service through planning and wise use of technology 

 Protecting its assets and investments through sound financial policies and practices 

 Seeking and developing regional solutions to challenges by collaborating with the community and industry 

Values                

As we strive to realize our vision of the future, all our actions and efforts will be guided by a certain set of values.  

These core values are our pledge to each other and to the community as to how we will conduct business. 

 

       Openness        Fairness 

       Team Work        Customer Service 

       Honesty        Timely 

       Quality        Communication 

       Respect        Fun 

       Good health        Creativity 

       Education        Proactive 

       Safety        Efficiency 
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DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT 

 Location Map 
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DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION &ANALYSIS 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

The intent of the management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) is to provide a narrative overview and 

analysis of the financial activities of Delta Diablo Sanitation District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 

2013.   

 

The information provided in this MD&A is reported in condensed format and is presented under the 

following headings: 

 

 Overview of the Financial Statements 

 Financial Highlights 

 Financial Analysis  

 Capital Assets and Debt 

 Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 

 Requests for Information 
 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This section is intended to serve as an introduction to be read in conjunction with Delta Diablo Sanitation 

District’s basic financial statements.  The district-wide financial statements are shown on pages 27-53.  

The District’s basic financial statements are comprised of two components: 1) Fund Financial Statements 

and 2) Notes to the Financial Statements.  This report also contains required and other supplementary 

information in addition to the basic financial statements. 
 

Fund Financial Statements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control 

over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  As a special purpose 

government, the District reports its financial statements in accordance with business-type activities known 

as enterprise funds.  Enterprise funds are self-supporting funds that charge fees to users to cover the cost 

of operations, maintenance, capital asset improvements and replacements.  Enterprise funds are reported 

on “accrual basis” of accounting similar to private sector companies.  Accrual basis is the basis of 

accounting under which revenues and gains are recorded when earned, and all expenses and losses are 

recorded when incurred. 

 

The fund financial statements consist of the Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenues and 

Expenses and Changes in Net Position and Statement of Cash Flows. 

 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the District’s assets plus deferred outflows of 

resources minus liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources, the net difference reported as Net Position. 

Over time, increases or decreases in net position serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 

position of Delta Diablo Sanitation District is improving or deteriorating.   

 

The Statement of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information showing how 

the government’s net assets changed during the fiscal year.  Revenues are recorded when earned and 

expenses are recorded when incurred regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  This statement 

measures the success of District operations (profitability) for the fiscal year and shows cost recovery from 

fees and other charges. 

 

The Statement of Cash Flows reflects changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from operational, 

capital, noncapital, and investing activities.  This statement summarizes the inflows (cash receipts) and 

outflows (cash disbursements) of cash, without consideration of the timing of the event giving rise to the 

obligation or receipt and excludes noncash transactions like depreciation and amortization of assets.    

 

Notes to the Financial Statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 

understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements.    
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DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION &ANALYSIS 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 The District’s combined net position totaled $154.4 million. 

 During the fiscal year, total net position decreased by $0.3 million.  

 Total assets decreased by $3.7 million or 2%  

 Total liabilities decreased by $3.4 million or 11% 

 Total revenues were $33.1 million, an increase of $3.1 million or 10%. 

 Total expenses were $33.4 million, an increase of $3.9 million or 13%. 

 Capital contributions were $2.8 million, an increase of $0.9 million or 47% 
 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Statement of Net Position.  As noted earlier, the changes in net position serve as a useful indicator of 

Delta Diablo Sanitation District’s financial position over time.  The District’s remains financially sound 

with combined total net position as of June 30, 2013 at $154.4 million.  For the current fiscal year, the 

District’s net position has decreased by $0.3 million.  The last two fiscal years prior, the District’s net 

position has steadily grown $0.5 million or less than 1%, and by $3.2 million or 2%, respectively.  

 

The current fiscal year’s decrease is a net result of capital contributions ($2.8 million) minus a loss before 

contributions ($3.0 million).  This will be further discussed in the Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and 

Changes in Net Position section of this analysis.  Overall, the District’s total assets plus deferred outflow 

exceeded total liabilities plus deferred inflows by $154.4 million.  This positive result is indicative of the 

District’s strong financial position.  The largest portion of Delta Diablo Sanitation District’s net position 

(83%) is net investment in capital assets (land, treatment and collection facilities, machinery and 

equipment) net of related debt.  These capital assets are necessary to provide services to District rate 

payers, so these assets are not available for future spending. For the current fiscal year, these assets 

decreased by $1.5 million primarily due lesser investments made in total capital assets compared to the 

prior fiscal year. An additional portion of the District’s net position (1.0%) represents resources that are 

subject to external restrictions such as for debt service and for capital projects on how these resources 

may be used.  The net decrease in restricted net position of $0.2 million for this fiscal year is primarily 

due to decrease in restricted investments that were used for acquisition, construction of capital assets for 

the current fiscal year.  The remaining balance of the District’s net position (16%) represents the 

unrestricted portion of the net position. Unrestricted net position increased by $1.4 million for the current 

year at $24.2 million to-date.  The increase in unrestricted net position is primarily correlated to the 

corresponding decrease in the net investment in capital assets for the same amount.  Unrestricted net 

position is a direct result of the District’s cumulative operating and non-operating activities, thereby 

providing additional resources available for the District’s use in future periods.  

 

Assets Plus Deferred Outflows and Liabilities Plus Deferred Inflows.  Total assets decreased by $3.7 

million or 2%, and total liabilities decreased by $3.4 million or 11%; resulting in a net decrease of total 

net position for the current fiscal year by $0.3 million compared to last fiscal year.  The District does not 

have any deferred outflows and inflows balances as of June 30, 2013.    

 

Assets.  For fiscal year end (FYE) 2013, current and other assets decreased by $2.0 million (5%) from the 

prior fiscal year primarily due to decreases in cash, unrestricted and restricted investments, accounts 

receivable, and prepaid expenses, partially offset by increases in notes receivable, materials and supplies, 

designated cash and investments, and net Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) assets.  The decrease 

in cash and unrestricted investments (9%) is primarily due to the Board approved $3.9 million lump-sum 

payment of the District’s CalPERS side-fund.  Restricted investments decreased (9%) due to zero escrow 

and reduced debt balances due to scheduled debt service payments in the current year.  Decreases in 

accounts receivable are primarily due to timing of when invoices are billed and paid by the District’s 

customers in the current fiscal year compared to the prior fiscal year.  The increase in notes receivable is 

largely due a new note owed by the City of Pittsburg, for the Pittsburg recycled water project, which is 
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DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION &ANALYSIS 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

being paid through a new fixed surcharge.  The net increase in the designated investments is primarily due 

to funds set aside by the District Board for the advanced treatment process project in anticipation of more 

stringent future regulatory requirements offset by the decrease in funds set aside for related employee 

benefit costs.  The decrease in designated funds for related employee benefit costs is due to the required 

annual payment transfers to Contra Costa County Employees Retirement Association (CCCERA) in 

accordance with the termination agreement to pay for the District’s unfunded obligation (see note 2I for 

additional information).  Net OPEB assets increased due to additional contributions made to the OPEB 

trust fund from the prior fiscal year’s unspent contingency and operational savings as directed by the 

District Board.  Capital assets (net) decreased by 1% compared to prior year as there were lesser number 

of large projects completed in the current year, which will be discussed further in the capital assets section 

of this analysis.         

 

Liabilities.  The net decrease in total liabilities of $3.4 million was attributable to a $1.4 million decrease 

in current and other liabilities, plus the decrease in long-term debt (net) of $2.0 million.  For current and 

other liabilities, the net decrease is largely due to decreases in accounts payable, accrued payroll and 

benefits, deposits payable and unearned revenue.  Decreases in accounts payable (26%) and deposits 

payable (98%) compared to the prior year correlates to the reduced investments in capital assets this fiscal 

year.  The decrease in unearned revenue (25%) is primarily for project reimbursements received in 

advance from partner agencies in the prior year that were earned this fiscal year.  Reduced accrued payroll 

and benefits was primarily due to the annual payment transfers to CCCERA as discussed in the previous 

paragraph.  The decrease in net long-term debt (9%) was due scheduled principal and interest payments 

towards the debt obligations for the year offset by additional drawdown from new low-interest loan 

secured from the State of California State Revolving Fund (SRF) to fund the aerations systems 

improvement project.  Additional information on long-term debt is discussed in the debt section of this 

analysis.   

 

The following tables are shown in comparative format for fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 

with variances shown as percentages for analysis. 

 

Condensed Statement of Net Position 

        

  

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 % Increase/(Decrease) 

  

2013 

 

2012   2011 

 

2013 vs. 

2012 

 

2012 vs. 

2011 

Current and other assets 

 

$38,486,543 

 

$40,508,133 

 

$44,671,864 

 

(5)% 

 

(9)% 

Capital assets (net) 

 

144,586,963 

 

146,216,647 

 

141,066,027 

 

(1)% 

 

4% 

    Total assets 

 

$183,073,506 

 

$186,724,780 

 

$185,737,891 

 

(2)% 

 

1% 

           Current and other liabilities 

 

$7,521,700 

 

$8,881,464 

 

$5,165,979 

 

(15)% 

 

72% 

Long-term debt (net) 

 

21,182,111 

 

23,198,604 

 

26,442,120 

 

(9)% 

 

(12)% 

    Total liabilities 

 

$28,703,811 

 

$32,080,068 

 

$31,608,099 

 

(11)% 

 

1% 

           Net position 

          Net investment in capital assets 

 

$128,104,632  

 

$129,564,959  

 

$126,558,087  
 

(1)% 
 

2% 

Restricted 

 

2,088,821  

 

2,307,508  

 

1,796,301  

 

(9)% 

 

28% 

Unrestricted 

 

24,176,242  

 

22,772,245  

 

25,775,404  

 

6% 

 

(12)% 

    Total net position 

 

$154,369,695  

 

$154,644,712  

 

$154,129,792  

 

(0)% 

 

0% 

 

Statement of Revenue and Expenses and Changes in Net Position.  This statement measures the 

success of the District’s over-all operations for the fiscal year and shows cost recovery from user fees and 

other charges.  For the current fiscal year, FYE 2013, the District’s expenses exceeded its revenues by 
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$0.3 million.  In the prior two consecutive fiscal years, FYE 2012, and FYE 2011, the District’s revenues 

exceeded its expenses by $0.5 million and $3.2 million, respectively. 

   

This fiscal year’s negative result was primarily due to a decision by the District’s Board of Directors to 

pay off its CalPERS side-fund liability with a one-time lump-sum payment of $3.9 million.  The use of 

low earning reserves to pay for the higher interest debt (at 7.5% interest rate) on the CalPERS side fund 

provides the District’s ratepayers the greatest potential savings in the future compared to other 

alternatives considered.  On a “normalized” basis, without the one-time lump-sum payment of this high 

cost actuarial liability for the current fiscal year, the District would have a positive net position outcome 

($3.6 million) consistent with prior fiscal years’ results.   These positive outcomes over time were 

achieved due to: the District’s continued efforts in aggressively securing additional funding through 

grants and subgrants; maintaining a stable revenue base with moderate rate increases and adding new 

revenue streams despite economic challenges faced by most municipalities and special districts since 

2008; and containing expenditures to ensure service charge rate increases are kept as low as possible 

without sacrificing the level of service provided to the public. 

 

Revenue.  Total revenue excluding capital contributions for the current fiscal year was $30.4 million, an 

increase of $2.2 million, or 8.0%, over the prior year results.  In FYE 2013, District revenues remained 

strong, with all major revenue categories higher compared to last fiscal year.  Total revenue for FYE 2012 

and FYE 2011 were $28.1 million and $26.7 million, respectively.  

 

Total revenue, excluding capital contributions was a direct result of increases in service charges of $2.1 

million (9%), along with slight increases in other operating revenue, property taxes, interest income and 

other non-operating revenues.   

 

FYE 2013 service charges remained strong at $25.8 million, or 9% higher than FYE 2012 at $23.7 

million, which was 10% higher than FYE 2011.  The gradual moderate increases in wastewater sewer 

service rates are consistent with the rate model approved by the District Board and ensures consistent 

delivery of services with the least possible impact to its rate payers.  The current year increase in services 

charges is primarily due to a total of 7.6% increase in wastewater sewer service charges approved by the 

Board plus modest growth in services provided.  2.7% of the 7.6% rate increase is in preparation for the 

new advance treatment plant that is anticipated to be built due to more stringent regulatory guidelines.  A 

Board designated reserve fund for this project was established beginning in fiscal year 2011/12.  Recycled 

water service charges also increased by 6% primarily due to higher recycled water consumed by its 

customers this fiscal year compared to the prior fiscal year.  FYE 2013 is the first year the City of Antioch 

is billed for a monthly recycled water surcharge, reimbursing the District for its additional project costs 

share related to the recycled water Antioch project.  Sewer service charges fund wastewater operations 

and maintenance, capital asset and capital asset replacement projects.  Likewise, recycled water service 

charges fund recycled water operations, capital asset and capital asset replacements projects.   

 

The net increase in other operating revenues (2%) was primarily due to higher discharge permits (25%), 

work for others revenue (2%) and miscellaneous revenue (1%), partially offset by a slight decrease in 

household hazardous waste (HHW) operating fees (3%) this year compared to prior fiscal year.  

Discharge permits were slightly higher this year due to a moderate increase in the number of major 

discharge permits issued; both work for others and miscellaneous revenue can vary from year-to-year 

depending on the operating activities related to large multi-agency collaborative and/or multi-year 

projects as well as when additional non-recurring revenues are collected. HHW operating fees decreased 

due to reduced reimbursements from partner agencies this year compared to the prior fiscal year.  

Other operating revenue in FYE 2013 was $2.7 million, compared to $2.6 million and $3.0 million for the 

prior two fiscal years, respectively.   
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Property taxes and assessments increased slightly by 2% for FYE 2013 at $1.6 million, compared with the 

two previous years’ results at $1.6 million and $1.7 million, respectively.  The increase experienced was 

primarily due to additional redevelopment funds received this year.  Based on almost flat year-over-year 

results for the last three years, the downward trend from the housing bubble appears to have subsided.  

Interest income had a slight increase in the current fiscal year at $0.2 million primarily due to interest 

from the Antioch recycled water project monthly surcharge that started in FYE 2013.  Overall interest 

rates are still historically low consistent with the continuing downward trend in the short-term interest rate 

market and over-all declines in the economy since 2008.  For FYE 2012 compared to FYE 2011, interest 

income was $0.2 million and $0.3 million, respectively. 

 

Total capital contributions are comprised of capital facilities capacity charges (CFCC)/connections fees 

and other capital contributions received from intergovernmental funding sources.  Compared to the prior 

fiscal year, total capital contributions increased by $0.9 million, or 47%.  This increase is primarily due to 

a moderate increase in CFCC/connection fees of $0.6 million coupled with a slight increase in other 

capital contribution/grant revenue of $0.3 million compared to the prior year.  

 

CFCC revenues are one-time charges assessed to connect to the District’s waste water system.  These 

revenues are used to construct expansion projects to serve growth in the District’s service area and to pay 

annual debt service associated with previous expansion projects.   CFCC totaled $2.3 million for FYE 

2013, a 35% increase over the prior year largely due to higher residential connections (47%) offset by a 

sharp decline in the number of commercial connections (69%).  This year’s total equivalent residential 

unit (ERU) additions were 484 compared to 392 new ERU last fiscal year. These results represent the 

highest number of new connections and related CFCC revenues collected since fiscal year 2008/2009. 

FYE 2011 had 457 ERUs, higher industrial connections due to 150 ERU’s from a new energy plant. 

CFCC revenues are about 21% higher than the current budget assumption of 400 ERUs in line with the 

moderately improved building industry outlook this year, and are consistent with the five-year average of 

446 ERUs.  For FYE 2012 and FYE 2011, CFCC revenue was $1.7 million and $2.2 million, 

respectively.    

 

Other capital contributions/grant revenue can fluctuate from year-to-year depending on project activities 

and availability of funds primarily from Federal and State agencies.  Despite a challenging year for 

securing Federal and State grants, for FYE 2013, the District received a total of $0.5 million of other 

capital contribution.  This includes a Federal grant for $0.2 million, plus $0.3 million from subgrants.  

The Federal grant received was for the District’s recycled water master plan.  Other capital contributions 

for FYE 2012 and 2011 were $0.2 million and $2.2 million, respectively.   FYE 2011 was higher due to a 

heavily grant funded recycled water project for Antioch.  

 

Expenses.  Combined expenses for FYE 2013 totaled $33.4 million, an increase of $3.9 million, or 13%, 

from prior year.  Total expenses for FYE 2012 and FYE 2011 were $29.5 million and $27.8 million, 

respectively.  As discussed at the the beginning of this section, for the current fiscal year, the increase in 

combined expenses is primarily from the $3.9 million of CalPERS side fund payment.  On a “normalized 

basis” without this one-time, lump sum liability payment, the District’s combined expenses would have 

been $29.5 million, which is the same as the prior year.   Continued efforts were made by District staff to 

contain expenses for the year.  Other than the sharp increase in salaries and benefits primarily due to the 

CalPERS side fund payment, there were moderate increases in all major expense categories, offset by 

decreases in net chemical and utilities expense, and interest expense compared to the prior fiscal year.   

 

Salaries and benefits totaled $17.6 million, an increase of $3.7 million or 27% compared to the prior fiscal 

year.  This was primarily due to a combination of the following factors: the one-time $3.9 million 

CalPERS side-fund payment, five promotions, salary adjustments, merit and cost-of-living adjustments 

(2.2%), OPEB contribution, worker’s compensation (6%) and medical benefit cost (10%) increases, 

19



DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION &ANALYSIS 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

partially offset by lower CalPERS employer contribution and moderate cost savings in dental costs.  Total 

salaries and benefits combined for FYE 2012 and FYE 2011 were $13.9 million and $13.1 million, 

respectively.  

 

In July 2010, the Board approved the District Retiree Health Funding Plan, whereby employees pay a 

share of the annual OPEB obligation (1% of salaries per fiscal year up to a 3% maximum) with the 

District matching the employee’s contribution.  For FYE 2013, employees started contributing 3% 

towards OPEB costs that was consequently matched by the District.  The net OPEB cost increase was due 

to the FY2012/2013 scheduled District matching contribution.  For additional information on OPEB, see 

accompanying notes to the financial statements No.9 – OPEB. Medical benefit increases are due to 

slightly higher medical rates compared to prior year.  Worker’s compensation moderate increase is 

primarily attributable to the adjustments made on experience modification factor methodology by the 

California Sanitation Risk Management Authority (CSRMA) for this fiscal year.  CalPERS employer 

contribution for Tier I decreased as employer contribution rates went down from 25.6% to 16.0% after the 

side-fund payment was made in October 2012.  Dental costs decreased due to lower dental claims 

experienced for this year compared to prior year.  

 

In FYE 2013, the Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) of 2013 was created with the passing 

of Assembly Bill 340 (AB 340) signed by the Governor on September 2012.  PEPRA implemented 

reduced benefit formulas, increased retirement age, final compensation period and new contribution 

requirements for new employees hired on or after January 1, 2013, who meet the definition of “new 

member” under this bill. This bill also created a Tier III pension plan for District employees, as well as 

some changes that affect current employees.  For the most part, savings from PEPRA will financially 

impact the District in the future, as the majority of the changes apply only to newly-hired employees and 

none of these changes affect employers’ existing unfunded pension liability.  Benefits for the current year, 

includes employer contributions to all three tiers.  See accompanying notes to the financial statements 

No.8 – Retirement Plan for additional information. 

         

Other expense categories that increased for FYE 2013 includes depreciation expense, other operating 

expenses increased offset by decreases in net chemicals and utilities; and interest expense.  The majority 

of these increases are due higher costs incurred this year compared to the prior fiscal year. 

 

Depreciation totaled $6.5 million, increasing by $0.2 million, or 4%, due to the additional capital assets 

that depreciated this fiscal year compared to prior year.  Total depreciation for FYE 2012 and FYE 2011 

were $6.3 million and $6.0 million, respectively.  Other operating expenses totaled $5.7 million, an 

increase of $0.2 million from last year primarily due to higher operating expenses incurred largely due to 

higher cost and usage of gas & oil, higher usage of operating supplies, offset by lower solid waste 

disposal costs this year compared to the prior year.  Other operating expenses for FYE 2012 and FYE 

2011 were $5.5 million and $5.0 million, respectively. Interest expense decreased due to the downward 

trend in market rates and payment of principal owed on debt.   

 

Chemicals and utilities decreased by less than $0.1 million to a total of $2.8 million primarily due to 

slightly lower utility costs offset by higher chemical costs than prior year.   Utilities are lower due 

combination of operational efficiencies including utility savings from the Solar project.  Higher chemical 

costs were primarily due to increase in price for some chemicals and moderately higher procurement 

costs.  A major factor on the higher freight costs is the cost of gasoline and oil that has been steadily 

increasing over the years due to market supply and demand.  Total chemicals and utilities combined for 

FYE 2012 and FYE 2011 were $2.8 million and $2.6 million, respectively.   
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Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

       

  

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 

 

% Increase/(Decrease) 

  

2013   2012   2011 

 

2013 vs. 

2012 

 

2011 vs. 

2010 

 Service charges 

 

$25,824,829 

 

$23,741,202 

 

$21,650,025 

 

9% 

 

10% 

 Other operating revenues 

 

2,677,605 

 

2,615,692 

 

3,029,475 

 

2% 

 

(14)% 

 Property Taxes 

 

1,627,706 

 

1,591,167 

 

1,662,436 

 

2% 

 

(4)% 

 Interest income 

 

189,139 

 

151,223 

 

275,653 

 

25% 

 

(45)% 

 Other non-operating revenues 

 

56,507 

 

41,244 

 

35,773 

 

37% 

 

15% 

     Total revenues 

 

$30,375,786 

 

$28,140,528 

 

$26,653,362 

 

8% 

 

6% 

 

            Salaries and benefits 

 

$17,593,719 

 

$13,892,968 

 

$13,089,446 

 

27% 

 

6% 

 Chemicals and utilities 

 

2,755,742 

 

2,815,572 

 

2,586,077 

 

(2)% 

 

9% 

 Depreciation and amortization 

 

6,506,348 

 

6,279,367 

 

5,990,441 

 

4% 

 

5% 

 Other operating expenses 

 

5,683,360 

 

5,483,266 

 

4,954,305 

 

4% 

 

11% 

 Interest expense 

 

868,105 

 

1,025,593 

 

1,174,581 

 

(15)% 

 

(13)% 

 Other non-operating expenses 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

         Total expenses 

 

$33,407,274 

 

$29,496,766 

 

$27,794,850 

 

13% 

 

6% 

 
            Income (loss) before capital contributions 

 

($3,031,488) 

 

($1,356,238) 

 

($1,141,488) 

 

124% 

 

19% 

 
            Add: Capacity charges - connection fees 

 

2,280,985 

 

1,687,667 

 

2,160,678 

 

35% 

 

(22)% 

 Add: Other capital contributions 

 

475,486 

 

183,491 

 

2,156,104 

 

159% 

 

(91)% 

     Changes in net position 

 

($275,017) 

 

$514,920 

 

$3,175,294 

 

(153)% 

 

(84)% 

 
            Net position - beginning of year 

 

$154,644,712 

 

$154,129,792 

 

$150,954,498 

 

0% 

 

2% 

 
            Net position - end of year 

 

$154,369,695  

 

$154,644,712  

 

$154,129,792  

 

(0)% 

 

0% 

  

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT 

Capital Assets.  Capital assets (net of depreciation) for FYE 2013, FYE 2012, and FYE 2011 totaled 

$144.6 million, $146.2 million and $141.1 million, respectively. In the current year, the total decrease in 

total capital assets (net of depreciation) was 1% or $1.6 million compared to the prior year.  The reduction 

in total capital assets (net of depreciation) is the result of the construction in progress increasing, offset by 

the decrease in depreciable capital assets.      

 

Construction in progress had a net increase of $2.3 million; this is primarily due to additional projects that 

are still classified as in-progress and not completed.  Construction in progress totaled $13.4 million for 

the fiscal year consistent with the District’s implementation of its Capital Improvement Program (CIP). 

The CIP document identifies the District’s capital needs with its corresponding sources of revenue over a 

five-year horizon and is updated annually.   

 

Depreciable capital assets had a net decrease of $4.0 million, the net result of $2.4 million of capital 

assets added for the year, offset by accumulated depreciation (net of adjustments) for the year of $6.4 

million.   Additional depreciable capital assets purchased for the year were due to capital investments (net 

of disposals) in the treatment and collection systems of $2.3 million, and machinery and equipment of 

$0.1 million, necessary to provide continuous reliable service to its customers.   
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Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 

        

  

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 

 

% Increase/(Decrease) 

  

2013 

 

2012 

 

2011 

 

2013 vs. 

2012 

 

2012 vs. 

2011 

Land 

 

$2,719,251 

 

$2,719,251 

 

$2,719,251 

 

0% 

 

0% 

Construction in progress 13,402,243 

 

11,075,100 

 

16,619,908 

 

21% 

 

(33)% 

Treatment & collection 

system (net) 127,681,595 

 

131,577,040 

 

120,654,213 

 

(3)% 

 

9% 

Equipment (net) 783,879 

 

845,256 

 

1,072,655 

 

(7)% 

 

(21)% 

    Total capital assets (net) $144,586,968  

 

$146,216,647  

 

$141,066,027  

 

(1)% 

 

4% 

 

Each year, the District continues to expand and improve its wastewater treatment, conveyance and 

collection systems to comply with stricter environmental regulations as well as to minimize sewer 

overflow and/or any disruptions of service.   

 

Major treatment and collection systems purchased and/or constructed by the District (94% of $2.3 

million) for the fiscal year include: 

 

Project Description Acquisition Costs 

WWTP Primary Influent Line/Grit Chamber $1,572,781  

Pittsburg & Antioch Pump St VFD Replacement                     387,604  

Pittsburg Recycled Water Project Retrofit                     200,000  

Total $2,160,385  

 

This year’s major construction in progress projects (85% of $13.4 million) include: 

 

Project Description  Acquisition Costs  

Aeration Systems Improvement Construction $5,351,366  

Photovoltaic Energy Gen Project                     3,045,123  

Bay Area Biosolids To Energy Project Planning                     1,262,568  

Pittsburg Recycled Water Line Rehabilitation                     1,252,458  

Conveyance & Treatment System Reliability Improvements                       448,232  

Total $11,359,747  

  

For additional information, see accompanying notes to the financial statements No.5 – Capital Assets.  

 

Debt. Total net debt obligations for FYE 2013, FYE 2012, and FYE 2011 totaled $25.4 million, $27.2 

million and $26.4 million, respectively. Outstanding debt decreased by $1.8 million or 7% this year 

compared to the prior year.  This net decrease was due to total scheduled principal payments on 

outstanding debt of $4.0 million, offset by final funds drawn for 2011 SRF loan of $1.3 million plus 

accreted interest (1991 COP) of $0.8 million.  

 

The 1991 certificates of participation and related interest, both the 1997 and 2010 California State 

Revolving Fund (SRF) loans, and the 2011 installment note payable decrease annually due to scheduled 

principal payments.  The District did not issue any new bonded debt this fiscal year.  This outstanding 

debt previously issued funded improvements, replacements and expansion of the wastewater, recycled 

22



DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION &ANALYSIS 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

water and sewage systems. The source of funds for repayment of debt issued for expansion purposes is 

the capital facility capacity charges/CFCC.  In the current year, final funds were drawn for the 2011 SRF 

loan for the aeration systems improvements project.  As of June 30, 2013 the total amount of funds drawn 

for this obligation is $5.0 million; annual payments will commence on April 2014 with interest rate at 

2.6% and a 20-years payment term. 

 

Long-term Debt (net of discount) 

         

  

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 

 

% Increase/(Decrease) 

  

2013 

 

2012 

 

2011 

 

2013 vs. 

2012 

 

2012 vs. 

2011 

1991 Certificates of participation (COP) $2,841,714 

 

$3,684,374 

 

$4,583,569 

 

(23)% 

 

(20)% 

1991 COP accreted interest  8,872,598 

 

10,509,432 

 

11,934,180 

 

(16)% 

 

(12)% 

1997 State revolving fund loan (SRF) 828,955 

 

1,027,100 

 

1,221,736 

 

(19)% 

 

(16)% 

2010 SRF loan 5,697,212 

 

6,011,416 

 

6,358,425 

 

(5)% 

 

(5)% 

2011 Installment Note Payable 2,072,577 

 

2,212,746 

 

2,344,210 

 

(6)% 

 

(6)% 

2011 SRF loan 5,041,873 

 

3,716,052 

   

36% 

 

0% 

    Total long-term debt (net) $25,354,929  

 

$27,161,120  

 

$26,442,120  

 

(7)% 

 

3% 

 

 For additional information, see accompanying notes to the financial statements No.7 – Long-term Debt. 

 

The latest debt rating review (2012) received by the District resulted in the credit rating of AA being re-

affirmed by Standard & Poors (S&P).  S&P views the outlook for this AA rating as stable and reflects the 

District’s very strong financial performance.  S&P pointed out the primary reason for re-affirming this 

strong bond rating is the District board’s willingness to continue to adjust rates incrementally and the very 

prudent approach to start collecting and setting aside funds for the advanced treatment plant project in 

anticipation of nutrient removal regulations.  This is evidenced by the continued strong debt service 

coverage and strong liquidity; competitive rates; manageable capital plan with expansion costs 

historically financed from connection fees; and a stable and diverse customer base largely collected 

through the County’s Teeter Plan. 

 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES 

Economic Factors. As noted earlier, the District operates as an enterprise fund and is therefore self-

supporting.  The District charges fees to users to cover the cost of operations, maintenance, capital asset 

improvements and replacements.  Economic factors that may affect the District include: 

 

 Continued slow economic recovery: affects the District’s capacity/connection fees, which is 

based on construction growth and development; and over-all investment income, which is 

dependent on prevailing market interest rates.  Also, the economy may affect the District’s ability 

to collect some fees that are billed.  Any market losses can potentially affect District investments 

and OPEB trust fund balances. 

 

 Changes in the State budget and future legislation, including the recent passage of the California 

Pension Reform Act of 2013 and, although limited, future state borrowing from local 

governments. The California pension reforms will result in future savings to the District.  

However, with the State facing a continued budget crisis and unfavorable economic conditions, it 

may seek to borrow from local governments as has been done in the past. 

 

 Changes in Federal budget and legislation could affect the District’s ability to secure additional 

Federal grant funding and low interest loans. 
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 Changes in assessed property values affects the District’s property tax revenue.  As the housing 

market improves, the assessed property values should follow, thereby increasing the District’s 

property tax revenue.  Conversely, any decline with the housing market will decrease property 

values and correspondingly decrease property tax revenues for the District.  

   

Next Year’s Budget and Rates. The District has a three-year operating budget cycle, with the latest 

covering FY2012/13 through FY2014/15.  The District annually conducts reviews and updates the budget 

document although Board policy is that the budget appropriation must be adopted by the first meeting in 

July.  The District Board typically adopts budget appropriations annually in June for the upcoming fiscal 

year starting in July.  FY2013/14 is the second year of the current three-year operating budget cycle.  

  

In July 2013, the Board adopted the FY2013/14 operating budget with a total District budget expense 

appropriation of $34.4 million. Included in the budget Board docket, the Board also authorized short-term 

borrowings between funds, which will be re-paid with interest.  An inter-fund loan of up to $2.3 million 

was approved from wastewater capital asset replacement fund to wastewater expansion ($1.6 million) and 

to wastewater capital asset fund ($0.7 million).   The wastewater expansion fund is projected to use more 

funds than available during FY 2013/14 primarily due to anticipated CFCC revenues being lower than 

scheduled debt service payments.  The wastewater capital asset fund is projected to use more funds than 

available from revenues received and its reserve fund balance in FY 2013/14 based on the adopted CIP.  

As a policy, the District Board approves any inter-fund borrowing and/or external debt financing.   

 

As noted earlier, the District has a five-year Capital Improvement Program which is updated annually.  In 

May 2013 the Board adopted the FY2013/14–2017/18 CIP.  The 2013 update of the capital plan includes 

additional projects over the next five years in support of the District’s five core programs: Wastewater, 

Recycled Water, Household Hazardous Waste, Street Sweeping and Bay Point Collection.  The FY 

2013/14 - 2017/18 CIP includes approximately $52.6 million for planned projects over five years.  It 

includes 17 new projects with an estimated combined total value of $18.5 million.  Approval of the CIP 

establishes the new FY 2013/14 CIP total budget appropriation of $5.7 million. 

 

With the exception of funding a portion of the District’s share of recycled water projects, to minimize the 

impact of potential property tax revenue shifts on rates, the District’s budgets all property tax revenue 

towards the wastewater capital asset replacement fund, thereby not assuming any use of these revenues 

for ongoing operations.  

 

Wastewater Sewer Service Charges  

The District’s collection of sewer service charges is primarily done through the County Property Tax Roll 

(Teeter Plan).  Actual increases to these charges, if any, are considered by the Board annually based on 

updated cash flow projections.  At the June 13, 2013 Board meeting, the Board approved a total of 6.5% 

rate increase on sewer service charges for FY 2013/14.  This increase is 1.2% lower than projected in last 

year’s rate analysis, primarily due to the Board-approved payoff of the nearly $3.9 million CalPERS side-

fund, which was previously being paid over time at an interest rate of 7.5%.  This results in savings to 

ratepayers of nearly 14% of previously projected yearly increases.  The total increase of 6.5% in sewer 

service charges comprises of a 3.8% rate increase needed to adequately meet projected expenditures for 

the year coupled with an additional increase of 2.7%, setting aside funds for a future major advanced 

treatment project anticipated that is required to meet new discharge regulations.  This was the third year 

with an incremental 2.7% increase for this purpose.  The additional 2.7% are deposited into a Board 

approved designated reserve fund for future advance treatment costs.  This early initiation of funding will 

avoid significant rate spikes in the future.  It is estimated that the Advance Treatment plant will be 

designed by FY 2021/22 and complete construction in late FY 2023/24.    
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Recycled Water Service Charges 

On June 2013, the new recycled water rates were established for fiscal year 2013/14 and approved by the 

District board. The variable rate component was increased by $7.04 per acre foot, or 2.7% with the 

overall recycled water rates to $320.80 cost per acre foot or 2.2% compared to last year.  The rates are 

well under the costs of treated water.   

The new recycled water rates also included one new component for fiscal year 2013/14, a monthly 

Pittsburg recycled water project surcharge.  When the Pittsburg recycled water distribution system was 

constructed, an existing City pipeline was reused for a portion of the project.  This pipeline was near the 

end of its useful life and subsequently required rehabilitation that was 75% grant funded and 25% locally 

funded.  The local share is the responsibility of the City, which requested that the District recover those 

costs over time through a recycled water surcharge.  The City of Pittsburg recycled water rehabilitation 

final project cost share was $328,582.50, to be repaid at monthly surcharge amount of $3,365.92 over a 

ten-year term at 4.25%.  The Calpine revenue stability surcharge and the monthly Antioch recycled water 

project surcharge was also approved to continue for fiscal year 2013/14.  The monthly stability surcharge 

of $20,000 per month will remain due to the continued uncertainty about the level of future use of 

recycled water by the Calpine plants.  This will be evaluated on an annual basis.  The additional Antioch 

recycled water surcharge is to cover the City’s share of the project costs in the amount of $1.1 million that 

exceeded the $5.0 million in principal payments for the low interest SRF loan secured by the District in 

2010 on behalf of the City.  The $1.1 million owed by the City will be repaid through a monthly recycled 

water surcharge of $6,825.65 that started in July 2012 over a 20-year period at 4.25% interest.    

 

The expansion of the recycled water program will result in a favorable environmental and fiscal impact 

for the District and its rate-payers. The recycled water rate was reviewed and recommended for approval 

by the recycled water Advisory Committee on rates composed of Calpine, the Cities of Pittsburg and 

Antioch, and District staff.   

 

Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA) 

The bargaining unit MOUs provide that COLA will be effective the first full pay period after July 1 each 

year, from a minimum of 2% up to 5%, based on the April to April change in the Consumer Price Index 

(CPI), San Francisco/Bay Area, Wage Earners.  The April 2013 year-over-year CPI was 2.2% or 0.8% 

less than previously assumed (same as FY2012/13 COLA), which will be effective in fiscal year 2013/14. 

 

OPEB and the District’s Retiree Health Funding Plan   

The District participates in a qualified, irrevocable trust fund that is established solely for the purpose of 

paying OPEB obligations.  As of FYE 2013, the irrevocable trust fund has a balance of $5.1 million. In 

July 2011, per the Board approved District Retiree Health Funding Plan, employees will begin 

contributing to the OPEB trust a total of 3% of their salaries, which is 1% higher than prior year. 3% is 

the maximum that will be contributed by employees towards OPEB, which was reached in July 2012. The 

District will be matching the employee’s contribution.  It is projected that the combination of employees’ 

and the District required match contribution will fund half of the FYE 2014 annual required contribution.  

The Board’s adopted OPEB funding policy states the Board’s intent to fully fund the remaining annual 

obligation.  For additional information on OPEB, see accompanying notes to the financial statements 

No.9 – OPEB.  

 

Pensions  

On November 9, 2011, the District’s Board approved side letters to each of the three employee bargaining 

unit’s Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) related to pension reform.  This initiative will result in 

current employees making the full employee contribution of 8% to CalPERS over time.  It also created a 

second tier pension plan (Tier II) for employees hired on or after July 1, 2012, which will result in 

substantially lower employer contributions by the District, as well as these new employees fully paying 

the employee contributions.  In addition, there are provisions for the District matching of employee 
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deferred compensation contributions of up to 4% over time for Tier I plan employees and up to 3.5% for 

Tier II employees immediately upon hire.  The financial impact of these changes will begin in FY 

2013/14, with the Tier I employee payments into CalPERS at 1% of salaries. Employee payments will 

increase to 2% in FY2014/15, the third year of the new three year budget, further reducing costs that 

otherwise would have been budgeted as District-paid benefits.  Also, beginning in FY2014/15, the 

District will match up to 1% of employee contributions into a deferred compensation account.   The new 

California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (AB 340 or PEPRA) was implemented in 

fiscal year 2012/13.  After PEPRA, the District now has three pensions Tiers I-III, and has reduced 

benefit formulas for Tiers II and III relative to Tier I.  For the most part, savings from PEPRA will come 

far in the future, as the majority of the changes apply only to newly-hired employees and none of these 

changes affect the existing unfunded pension liability.    

 

CalPERS Rate of Return Reductions and Employer Contribution Rates  

The CalPERS Board of Directors reduced its annual rate of return assumption from 7.75% to 7.5%, which 

CalPERS estimated increasing employer contribution rates by up to 2% beginning in FY2013/14.  

CalPERS recently decided to phase the increase over two fiscal years, but have not provided specific 

estimates of how it would be allocated each year.  Therefore, the full 2% has been added in FY2013/14 

budget.  CalPERS issues an annual valuation report, the most recent valuation available was as of June 

30, 2011.  The District had only Tier I plan employees as of June 30, 2011, the funding status reported is 

for that risk pool only.  The next valuation will be as of June 30, 2012, which will also pertain only to 

Tier I employees.  The June 30, 2013 valuation will also include the Tier II (2.0% at 55) and Tier III 

(2.0% at 62) plans.   

 

For fiscal year 2013/14, the required employer contribution for pension Tiers I, II and III employees is 

16.2%, 11.2%, and 6.7%, respectively.    

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements No.8 – Retirement Plan for additional information. 

  
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, customers, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a 

general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for the funding 

it receives.  Questions concerning the information provided in this report or requests for additional 

financial information should be addressed to Delta Diablo Sanitation District - Finance Division at 2500 

Pittsburg Antioch Highway, Antioch, California 94509.  
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2013 2012

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash  (Note 2) $1,590,900 $3,017,682

Investments  (Note 2) 23,204,168 24,353,441

Accounts receivable 1,299,010 1,799,380

Interest receivable 13,563 16,438

Notes receivable, current portion (Note 3) 316,735 287,843

Employee computer loans receivable, current portion (Note 4) 11,727 11,575

Materials and supplies (Note 1H) 748,944 716,220

Prepaid expenses 67,345 139,255

Total current assets 27,252,392 30,341,834

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Restricted cash and investments (Note 2H) 2,088,821 2,307,478

Cash and investments (Note 2I) 2,892,655 2,192,443

Other Assets:

Notes receivable, less current portion (Note 3) 5,654,971 5,643,124

Employee computer loans receivable, less current portion (Note 4) 5,958 6,216

Interest receivable 57

Net OPEB asset (Note 9) 591,746 16,981

Total other assets 6,252,675 5,666,378

Capital Assets (Note 5):

Capital assets, non-depreciable 16,121,494 13,794,351

Depreciable capital assets, net of

accumulated depreciation 128,465,469 132,422,296

Total capital assets, net 144,586,963 146,216,647

Total noncurrent assets 155,821,114 156,382,946

TOTAL ASSETS 183,073,506 186,724,780

(Continued)

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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2013 2012

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $1,014,659 $1,369,745

Accrued payroll and benefits 681,273 867,375

Deposits payable 12,658 812,971

Unearned revenue 722,652 969,125

Compensated absences - current portion (Note 6) 646,977 639,775

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 7) 1,644,110 1,495,176

Accreted interest 2,528,708 2,467,340

Accrued interest payable 7,473 9,259

Total current liabilities 7,258,510 8,630,766

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term debt, net of current portion  (Note 7):

Certificates of participation 2,060,422 2,841,714

State revolving fund loans 10,854,597 10,242,220

Installment sale agreement 1,923,202 2,072,578

Accreted interest 6,343,890 8,042,092

Total long-term debt, net of current portion 21,182,111 23,198,604

Compensated absences -net of current portion (Note 6) 232,069 219,577

Property tax refund 31,121 31,121

Total long-term liabilities 21,445,301 23,449,302

TOTAL LIABILITIES 28,703,811 32,080,068

NET POSITION (Note 11)

Net investment in capital assets 128,104,632 129,564,959

Restricted for debt service 2,088,821 2,201,996

Restricted for capital projects 105,512

Unrestricted 24,176,242 22,772,245

TOTAL NET POSITION $154,369,695 $154,644,712

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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2013 2012

OPERATING REVENUES

Service charges $25,824,829 $23,741,202

Discharge permits 186,200 148,900

Household hazardous waste operating fees 457,034 471,627

Miscellaneous 554,666 547,008

Work for others 1,479,705 1,448,157

Total operating revenues 28,502,434 26,356,894

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 17,593,719 13,892,968

Chemicals 1,311,718 1,266,027

Depreciation (Note 5) 6,506,348 6,279,367

Office expense 840,356 717,931

Operating expense 812,437 707,657

Outside service and maintenance 3,810,858 3,833,246

Travel and meetings 90,789 97,319

Utilities 1,444,024 1,549,545

Other 128,920 127,113

Total operating expenses 32,539,169 28,471,173

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (4,036,735) (2,114,279)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest expense (868,105) (1,025,593)

Interest income 189,139 151,223

Capital facilities capacity charges (Note 1I) 2,280,985 1,687,667

Lease revenue (Note 12) 36,125 35,949

Gain on sale of asset 20,382 5,295

State grants (1,742) 1,742

Federal grants 205,043

Subgrants 272,185 181,749

Property taxes 1,627,706 1,591,167

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses), net 3,761,718 2,629,199

NET INCOME (LOSS) (275,017) 514,920

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 154,644,712 154,129,792

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR $154,369,695 $154,644,712

See accompanying notes to financial statements

29
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2013 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers $29,002,804 $25,992,778

Payments to employees (17,185,362) (14,437,225)

Payments to utilities (1,444,024) (1,549,545)

Payments to contractual/professional services (4,611,171) (3,346,656)

Payments to suppliers (3,280,411) (2,718,601)

Other receipts (payments) (466,182) (114,951)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 2,015,654 3,825,800

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Taxes 1,627,706 1,570,494

State, federal and sub grants 475,486 183,491

Receipts on employee computer loans 106 7,512

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 2,103,298 1,761,497

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Acquisition of capital assets (4,876,664) (11,438,206)

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 20,382 5,295

Proceeds from SRF loan 1,325,821 3,716,052

Interest paid on long-term debt (869,891) (1,027,348)

Payment of long-term debt (1,222,182) (1,572,304)

Connection fees 2,280,985 1,687,667

Cash Flows from (used for) Capital and Related Financing Activities (3,341,549) (8,628,844)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Redemption and acquisition of investments, net 667,718 5,826,446

Change in fair value of investments (3,059,466) (355,731)

Receipts on note (40,633) (1,075,697)

Interest received on investments 192,071 159,625

Interest received on lease 36,125 35,949

Cash Flows from (used for) Investing Activities (2,204,185) 4,590,592

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (1,426,782) 1,549,045

Cash, beginning of year 3,017,682 1,468,637

Cash, end of year $1,590,900 $3,017,682

Reconciliation of operating (loss) to net cash provided by

operating activities:

Operating (loss) ($4,036,735) ($2,114,279)

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to cash

flows from operating activities:

Depreciation 6,506,348 6,279,367

Change in assets and liabilities:

Receivables, net 500,370 (364,116)

Materials and supplies (32,724) 96,710

Prepaid expenses 71,910 135,740

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (355,086) (259,436)

Accrued payroll and related expenses (166,408) (44,875)

Deposits payable (800,313) 486,590

Unearned revenue (246,473) 109,481

Net OPEB obligation and asset 574,765 (499,382)

Net cash provided by operating activities $2,015,654 $3,825,800

SCHEDULE OF NON CASH ACTIVITY

Accreted interest on bonds ($1,698,202) ($1,481,283)

Change in fair value of investments (3,059,466) (355,731)

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

A. General 

 

The District was formed in 1955 and later incorporated in October 1976 to serve the territory of 

the cities of Antioch and Pittsburg and the community of Bay Point.  Treatment of the wastewater 

collected from the three communities began in 1982. 

 

The District constructs and operates subregional sewage facilities and is responsible for 

maintenance of the collection system in Bay Point. 

 

The District is divided into three separate zones and may impose different service charges for 

each area in accordance with the benefits received by those areas. 

 

B. Reporting Entity 

 

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these basic financial statements present 

Delta Diablo Sanitation District and its component unit.  The component unit discussed in the 

following paragraph is included in the District’s reporting entity because of the significance of is 

operational or financial relationships with the District. 

 

Blended Component Unit - The Delta Diablo Integrated Financing Corporation was organized 

November 1, 1988, under the Non-Profit Public Benefit Corporation Law of the State of 

California solely for the purpose of providing financial assistance to the District by acquiring, 

constructing, improving and financing various facilities, land and equipment, and by leasing or 

selling certain facilities, land and equipment for the use, benefit and enjoyment of the public 

served by the District.  The Corporation has no members and the Board of Directors of the 

Corporation consists of the same persons who are serving as the Board of Directors of the 

District.  There are no basic financial statements prepared for the Corporation. 

 

C.  Basis of Accounting  
 

  Basic Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board is the 

acknowledged standard setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting standards 

followed by governmental entities in the U.S.A. 

 

The Statements of Net Position and the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 

Position display information about the Delta Diablo Sanitation District. Eliminations have been 

made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. Business-type activities are financed 

in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 

 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions 

associated with the principal activity of the fund.  Exchange transactions are those in which each 

party receives and gives up essentially equal values.  Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and 

investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.  
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 

D. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

 

Delta Diablo Sanitation District has a three-year operating budget cycle.  The District annually 

conducts a review and updates the operating budget document, which is approved and adopted by 

the Board.  For capital budgets, the District has a five-year Capital Improvement Program which is 

updated annually and adopted by the Board.  Budgetary controls are used and maintained by the 

District to facilitate compliance with the annually appropriated budget. 

 

E. Use of Estimates 

 

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results 

could differ from those estimates. 

 

F. Compensated Absences 

 

 The total amount of liability for compensated absences is reflected in the basic financial 

statements.  See Note 6 for additional information regarding compensated absences. 

 

G. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

 For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District defines cash and cash equivalents to include 

all cash and temporary investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of 

acquisition. 

 

H. Materials and Supplies 

 

Inventories consist of operational materials and supplies, which are valued using the weighted 

average costing method. 

 

I. Revenues – Capital Facilities Capacity Charges 

 

Capital facilities capacity charges represent a one-time, non-discriminatory charge imposed at the 

time a structure is connected to the District’s system, directly or indirectly, or an existing structure 

or category of use is expanded or increased.  The charge is to pay for District facilities in existence 

at the time the charge is imposed, or to pay for new facilities to be constructed in the future, that 

are of benefit to the property being charged. 

 

Revenues derived from these charges are used for the acquisition, construction and reconstruction 

of the wastewater collection, conveyance, treatment and disposal facilities of the District, to repay 

principal and interest on debt instruments, or to repay federal or State loans for the construction 

and reconstruction of the sewerage facilities, together with costs of administration and provisions 

for necessary reserves. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 

J. Reclassification 

 

For the year ended June 30, 2013, certain classifications have been changed to improve financial 

statement presentation.  For comparative purposes, prior year balances have been reclassified to 

conform to the fiscal year 2012 presentation. 

 

K. Implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements 
 

GASB Statement No. 60 – In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 60, Accounting 

and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements.  The objective of this Statement 

is to improve financial reporting by addressing issues related to service concession arrangements 

(SCAs), which are a type of public-private or public-public partnerships.  The requirements of 

this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 

2011.  This Statement had no impact on the District’s financial statements for fiscal year ending 

June 30, 2013. 
 

GASB Statement No. 61 – In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 61, The 

Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus – an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34.  

The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting for a governmental financial 

reporting entity.  The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for 

periods beginning after June 15, 2012.  This Statement did not have a material impact on the 

District’s financial statements for fiscal year ending June 30, 2013. 
 

GASB Statement No. 62 – In December 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 62, Codification 

of Accounting and Financial Reporting guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB 

and AICPA Pronouncements.  The objective of this Statement is to incorporate into the GASB’s 

authoritative literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance that is included in the 

FASB and AICPA pronouncements, which does not conflict with or contradict GASB 

pronouncements.  The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for 

periods beginning after December 15, 2011.  This Statement did not have a material impact on the 

District’s financial statements for fiscal year ending June 30, 2013. 

 

GASB Statement No. 63 – In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No. 63, Financial 

Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position.  

This Statement provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources and 

deferred inflows of resources.  In addition to assets, the statement of financial position or balance 

sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.  This separate 

financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net 

position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an 

outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  In addition to liabilities, the statement of 

financial position or balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of 

resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an 

acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 

recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 

 

The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after 

December 15, 2011.  This Statement changed certain financial statement titles and nomenclature 

on the District’s financial statements for fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.  
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

 

A. Policies 

 

 The District and its fiscal agents invest in individual investments and in investment pools.  

Individual investments are evidenced by specific identifiable pieces of paper called securities 

instruments, or by an electronic entry registering the owner in the records of the institution issuing 

the security, called the book entry system.  In order to maximize security, the District employs the 

Trust Department of a bank as the custodian of all District managed investments, regardless of their 

form. 

 

 California Law requires banks and savings and loan institutions to pledge government securities 

with a market value of 110% of the District’s cash on deposit or first trust deed mortgage notes with 

a value of 150% of the District’s cash on deposit as collateral for these deposits.  Under California 

Law this collateral is held in an investment pool by an independent financial institution in the 

District’s name and places the District ahead of general creditors of the institution pledging the 

collateral.  

 

 The District’s investments are carried at fair value, as required by generally accepted accounting 

principles. The District adjusts the carrying value of its investments to reflect their fair value at each 

fiscal year end, and it includes the effects of these adjustments in income for that fiscal year.  In the 

District’s case, fair value equals fair market value, since all District’s investments are readily 

marketable. 
 
B. Classification 

 

Cash and investments are classified in the financial statements as shown below, based on whether 

or not their use is restricted. 

 
2013 2012

Cash, available for District operations $1,590,900 $3,017,682

Investments, available for District operations 23,204,168 24,353,441

Restricted cash and investments 2,088,821 2,307,478

Designated cash and investments 2,892,655 2,192,443

Total Cash and Investments $29,776,544 $31,871,044

 
 

The District’s cash and investments consist of the following at June 30: 

 

2013 2012

Cash on hand $800 $800

Deposits held by County Treasury 1,114,117 775,280

Deposits with financial institutions 442,225 2,192,925

Investments 28,219,402 28,796,527

Restricted cash in escrow 105,512

Total Cash and Investments $29,776,544 $31,871,044
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

 

C. Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy 
 

 The District’s Investment Policy and the California Government Code allow the District to invest in 

the following, provided the credit ratings of the issuers are acceptable to the District and approved 

percentages and maturities are not exceeded.  The table below also identifies certain provisions of 

the California Government Code or the District’s Investment Policy where it is more restrictive that 

address interest rate risk, credit risk and concentration of credit risk: 
 

 

 

 

Authorized Investment Type 

  

 

 

Maximum 

Maturity 

  

 

Minimum 

Credit 

Quality 

  

 

Maximum 

Percentage 

of Portfolio 

  

 

Maximum 

Investment in 

One Issuer 

United States Treasury Obligations  5 years    100%  No Limit 

United States Government Agency Obligations  5 years    100%  No Limit 

State of California Obligations  5 years    100%  No Limit 

Local Agency Obligations  5 years    100%  No Limit 

Banker’s Acceptances  180 days    40%  30% 

Commercial Paper  270 days  A-1  25%  10% 

United States Medium Term Corporate Notes  5 years  AA  30%  No Limit 

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit  1 year  AA  30%  No Limit 

 

Local Agency Investment Fund 

  

n/a 

   $40 million 

per account 

  

No Limit 

Local Government Investment Pools  n/a  AAA  100%  No Limit 

Money Market Mutual Funds  n/a    15%  10% 

Insured savings or money market accounts  n/a    100%  No Limit 
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

 

D. Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements 
 

The District must maintain required amounts of cash and investments with trustees or fiscal 

agents under the terms of certain debt issues.  These funds are unexpended bond proceeds or are 

pledged reserves to be used if the District fails to meet its obligations under these debt issues.  

The California Government Code requires these funds to be invested in accordance with District 

resolutions, bond indentures or State statutes. The table below identifies the investment types that 

are authorized for investments held by fiscal agents.  The bond indentures contain no limitations for 

the maximum investment in any one issuer or the maximum percentage of the portfolio that may be 

invested in any one investment type.  The table also identifies certain provisions related to 

maturities and credit ratings, where applicable, of these investments: 

 

Minimum
Maximum Credit

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality

U.S. Treasury Obligations

U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprises

U.S. Agency Obligations

State Obligations:

Long-term General Obligations A 

Short-term General Obligations Highest to A-1+

Special Revenue Bonds AA

Demand Deposits

Time Deposits

Unsecured Certificates of Deposit 30 days A-1

FDIC Insured Deposits

Repurchase Agreements 30 days A-1 to A

Investment Agreements AA

Pre-refunded Municipal Obligations AAA

Prime Commercial Paper 270 days to 365 days A-1 to A-1+

Banker's Acceptances

Money Market Mutual Funds Aam or AAAm-G

State Pooled Investment Fund

Local Agency Investment Fund  
 

E. Interest Rate Risk 
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value 

of an investment.  Normally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity 

of its fair value changes in market interest rates.  The District generally manages its interest rate 

risk by holding investments to maturity. 
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Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments (including 

investments held by bond trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the 

following table that shows the distribution of the District’s investments by maturity or earliest call 

dates, at June 30, 2013: 

 

12 Months 13 to 24 25 to 60

Investment Type or less Months Months Total

Held by District:

   U.S. Government Agency Obligations $1,006,964 $601,433 $1,608,397

   Corporate Notes 1,007,590 611,801 1,619,391

   California Local Agency Investment Fund 23,186,031 23,186,031

   Money Market Mutual Funds (U.S. Securities) 33,758 33,758

Held by Trustees:

   Certificates of Deposit 509,730 501,495 $760,593 1,771,818

   Money Market Mutual Funds (U.S. Securities) 7 7

Total Investments $25,744,080 $1,714,729 $760,593 $28,219,402

 
The District is a participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by 

California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of 

California. The District reports its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount provided by LAIF, 

which is the same as the value of the pool share. The balance is available for withdrawal on 

demand, and is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an 

amortized cost basis.  Included in LAIF’s investment portfolio are collateralized mortgage 

obligations, mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to certain state funds, 

and floating rate securities issued by federal agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, United 

States Treasury Notes and Bills, and corporations.  At June 30, 2013 and 2012, these investments 

matured in an average of 278 and 268 days, respectively. 

 

Money market mutual funds are available for withdrawal on demand.  At June 30, 2013 and 

2012, these investments matured in an average of 37 and 40 days, respectively. 
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F. Credit Risk 
 

 Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of 

the investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized 

statistical rating organization.  Presented below is the actual rating as of June 30, 2013 for each 

investment type as provided by Moody’s investment rating system: 
 

Investment Type Aaa Total

Held by District:

U.S. Government Agency Obligations $1,608,397 $1,608,397

Corporate Notes 1,619,391 1,619,391

Money Market Mutual Funds (U.S. Securities) 33,758 33,758

Held by Trustees:

Certificates of Deposit 1,771,818 1,771,818

Money Market Mutual Funds (U.S. Securities) 7 7

Totals $5,033,371 5,033,371

Not rated:

California Local Agency Investment Fund 23,186,031

          Total Investments $28,219,402

  
G. Concentration Risk 
  

 At June 30, 2013, significant investments in the securities of any individual issuers, other than 

U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools, are set forth below: 
 

 

Investment Reported
Issuer Type Amount

Federal Home Loan Bank Federal agency securities $1,006,904

Federal National Mortgage Association Federal agency securities 601,432

 
 

H. Restricted Cash and Investments 
 

 The District has the following restrictions on cash and investments: 
 

Restricted for Escrow – The District has restricted investments in an escrow account for various 

construction projects in the amounts of $0 and $105,512 as of June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012, 

respectively. 

 

 Restricted for Debt Service – 1991 Bonds - The District has moneys held by Wells Fargo Bank 

as trustee, pledged to the payment or security of its outstanding bond issues.  All transactions 

associated with debt service are administered by the Bank.  The cash and investment amounts for 

June 30, 2013 are $39,883 and $1,722,580 respectively, totaling $1,762,463.  The cash and 

investment amounts for June 30, 2012 were $59,386 and $1,722,580 respectively, totaling 

$1,781,966. 
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Restricted for Debt Service – State Revolving Fund Loan- The District has restricted 

investments in reserves as required by the agreement between the District and the California State 

Water Resources Control Board State Revolving Fund Loan (SRF) in the amount of $326,358 and 

$420,000 at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.  

 

I.  Board Designated Investments 

 

The District has the following designations on investments as of June 30: 

 

 Designated for Advanced Treatment Plant - The District has designated investments for the 

anticipation of the need for an advanced treatment plant in the amount of $1,340,392 and 

$471,225 at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

 

 Designated for Operations and Maintenance Rate Stabilization - The District has designated 

investments for rate increases due to loss of revenue, increased retirement costs or other 

unanticipated significant expenses in the amount of $600,000 at June 30, 2013 and 2012. 

 

Designated for Related Employee Benefits Costs - The District has designated investments in 

accordance with employee labor contracts for the purpose of paying future benefits in connection 

with salary continuation in the amount $128,287 and $131,421 at June 30, 2013 and 2012, 

respectively. 

The District has designated investments to fund future increases associated with employee benefit 

costs.  The District discontinued participation in the Contra Costa County Employees Retirement 

Association (CCCERA) effective June 20, 2004.  The termination agreement provides for an 

evaluation of any additional liability owed to CCCERA every three years.  CCCERA retained 

certain assets contributed by the District and they remain responsible for retiree benefits for 

retirees and deferred vested members who were not transferred to the CalPERS system.  The 

designation of 2.44% of payroll annually for Employee Benefit Costs will be a source of funds to 

address this or other liabilities due to employee benefit costs increases.  On December 17, 2010, 

CCCERA’s actuary has conducted and determined the District’s termination liability using the 

triennial experience analysis as of December 31, 2009. Based on this analysis and in accordance 

with the termination agreement with CCCERA, the District’s unfunded obligation is $3,130,886 to 

be amortized in 15 years, resulting in an annual payment transfer of $360,215 starting December 

31, 2010.  As of June 30, 2013, the amount designated by the District for Employee Benefit Costs 

is $323,976, the majority of which will cover the December 2013 payment. 

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, the total amount for designated related employee 

benefits costs is $452,263 and $621,218. 

Designated for Insurance - The District has designated investments for potential insurance 

claims in the amount of $500,000 at both June 30, 2013 and 2012. 
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Recycled Water (RW): 

 

City of Antioch - The District and the City of Antioch (City) entered into a Joint Powers 

Agreement on November 18, 2003, for the purpose of development and operation of a “Recycled 

Water Program” (the Project).  Under the provisions of the agreement, the Project is to be jointly 

funded (50/50) by the District and the City.  The District is authorized to design, construct, own, 

operate and regulate the facilities.   

 

In fiscal year 2010/2011, the District recognized a Note Receivable in the amount of $5,753,348 

from the City of Antioch for their net share of the costs for this project.  This note has an interest 

rate of .077% with principal and interest due annually commencing December 31, 2011 and 

maturing on December 31, 2030.  On June 10, 2012, the District and the City of Antioch amended 

the Joint Powers Agreement to cap this Notes Receivable to a maximum of $5,000,000.  

 

In fiscal year 2011/2012, additional project cost share incurred in excess of $5 million in the 

amount of $1,102,272 will be financed by the District at an interest rate of 4.25% with principal 

and interest due monthly over a 20-year term commencing July 1, 2012 and maturing on June 1, 

2032. This monthly installment is billed to the City of Antioch as a Recycled Water Surcharge and 

annually amounts to $81,908. 

 

City of Pittsburg - The District and the City of Pittsburg (City) entered into a Joint Powers 

Agreement on November 24, 1999, for the purpose of development and operation of a “Recycled 

Water Program” (the Project).  The goal of this project is to construct and transport recycled water 

to the City’s golf course and certain parks to reduce the City’s reliance on treated drinking water 

for irrigation.  Under the provisions of the agreement, the Project is to be jointly funded by the 

District and the City.  The City is responsible for the design and construction of the Project. The 

District will operate and maintain after construction is completed.  The original project was 

completed, however, it was discovered that a portion of the previously existing line needs to be 

rehabilitated in order to ensure reliability.  The estimated cost for this rehabilitation project was 

$1,500,000.  Of this amount, the City has agreed to pay a maximum of $375,000 payable over a 

10-year term with an interest of 4.25 percent (prime plus 1 percent).   

 

In fiscal year 2013/2014, the City’s share of the actual cost of this rehabilitation amounted to 

$328,583.  The District recognized a Note Receivable for this amount with principal and interest 

due monthly commencing July 1, 2013 and maturing on June 1, 2023. This monthly installment is 

billed to the City of Pittsburg as a Recycled Water Surcharge and annually amounts to $40,391.    

 

Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) - The District owns and operates a Household Hazardous 

Waste (HHW) and a Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generator (CESQG) waste collection 

facility.  In an agreement dated July 1, 2002, Contra Costa County, Ironhouse Sanitary District 

and the Cities of Antioch, Brentwood and Pittsburg (Subscribers) agreed to reimburse the District 

for capital costs in planning and constructing the household hazardous waste facility. 
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 On April 9, 2008, this agreement was amended and includes capital cost sharing minus any grants 

received for the planning and construction of the new facility expansion.  The DHHWCF 

expansion was completed in September 2009.  Per the provisions of this amendment, the 

outstanding principal balance from the original facility construction will be combined with the 

new facility expansion costs, to be re-paid over a 25-year period with interest at 6% per annum.  

Total capital costs were allocated to the Subscribers based on the number of housing units in each 

Subscriber’s jurisdiction.  The City of Brentwood and Ironhouse Sanitary District have paid its 

share in full. 

 

La Chicana Note - On May 31, 2011, the District and La Chicana Restaurant entered into an 

agreement for the payments of the remaining Capital Facility Capacity Charges (CFCC) for the 

property at 2135 Willow Pass Road in Bay Point.  The remaining balance of $7,092 is due over 36 

months at 4.25% interest.   

 

Notes receivable at June 30 consisted of the following: 

 
 

    

2013 2012

RWF:

City of Antioch $4,503,457 $4,751,824

City of Antioch - Surcharge 1,066,520 1,102,272

City of Pittsburg - Surcharge 328,582

HHW:

Contra Costa County 70,682                72,043

La Chicana 2,465                  4,828

Total Notes Receivable 5,971,706 5,930,967

      Less: Current Portion (316,735) (287,843)

Long-Term Portion $5,654,971 $5,643,124

 
NOTE 4 – EMPLOYEE COMPUTER LOANS RECEIVABLE 

 

The District provides a zero interest loan to its employees for the purchase of personal computers.  

These loans are payable in a maximum of 78 equal payroll deductions (3 years).  The maximum 

amount each employee may borrow is $2,500.  As of June 30, the receivable was as follows: 

 

2013 2012

Employee computer loans $17,685 $17,791

Less: current portion (11,727)         (11,575)         

Long-term portion $5,958 $6,216
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NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS 

 

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at the time of purchase and are capitalized at cost.  

The District capitalizes as part of the asset cost, any significant interest incurred during the 

construction phase of the asset.  Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market 

value on the date contributed.  The District defines capital assets as property, plant and equipment 

with an initial individual cost of $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. 

 

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method for assets other than land.  Estimated 

useful lives are as follows: 

 

Conveyance and collection systems  50 years 

Treatment plant  40 years 

Office furniture  15 years 

Shop, lab and other equipment  10 years 

Computer equipment  3 years 

Vehicles  3 years 

 

Changes in property, plant and equipment accounts are summarized below: 

 
Balance at Balance at

June 30, 2012 Additions Transfers Retirement June 30, 2013

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $2,719,251 $2,719,251

Construction in Progress 11,075,100 $4,865,283 ($2,538,140) 13,402,243

Total capital assets not being depreciated 13,794,351 4,865,283 (2,538,140) 16,121,494

Capital assets being depreciated:

Treatment & Collection System 213,289,122 2,300,148 215,589,270

Equipment 4,112,683 11,381 237,992 ($146,289) 4,215,767

Total capital assets being depreciated: 217,401,805 11,381 2,538,140 (146,289) 219,805,037

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Treatment & Collection System 81,712,082 6,195,593 87,907,675

Equipment 3,267,427 310,755 (146,289) 3,431,893

Total accumulated depreciation 84,979,509 $6,506,348 ($146,289) 91,339,568

Net capital assets being depreciated 132,422,296 128,465,469

Total Capital Assets, net $146,216,647 $144,586,963

 
 

Construction in progress represents construction of treatment and collection facilities. 
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NOTE 6 – ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

 

Accumulated unpaid vacation and compensatory time have been accrued at June 30, 2013 in the 

amount of $879,046 Accumulated unpaid sick pay is not included in the amount for accrued 

benefits due to the contingent nature of any future payment.   

 

The changes in compensated absences were as follows at June 30, 2013: 

 

Beginning Balance $859,352

Additions 613,380

Payments (593,686)

Ending Balance $879,046

Current Portion $646,977

 
 

In addition, the Board has set up a Catastrophic Leave Bank, which accumulates up to 40 hours 

from each terminated employee’s forfeited sick leave.  Employees may also donate vacation 

hours. This time may be used by employees who have used all their sick leave due to catastrophic 

illness and need additional time off.  Accumulated Catastrophic Leave at June 30, 2013 was 

$112,734 and is included in the balance of Accrued Payroll and Benefits on the Statements of Net 

Position. 

 

NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
A. Current Year Transactions and Balances 

 
Original Amount

Issue Balance Balance due within

Amount June 30, 2012 Additions Retirements June 30, 2013 one year

1991 Certificates of Participation

Wastewater Facilities Expansion Project,

4.6-6.25%, due 12/01/2016 $17,454,950 $3,684,374 $842,660 $2,841,714 $781,292

Accreted interest on 1991 Certificates 10,509,432 $830,506 2,467,340 8,872,598 2,528,708

1997 State Revolving Fund Loan

1.80%, due 12/31/2016 3,611,046 1,027,100 198,145 828,955 201,718

2010 State Revolving Fund Loan

.077%, due 12/31/2030 6,325,503 6,011,416 314,204 5,697,212 314,445

2011 Installment Sale Agreement

4.9%, due 6/24/2031 2,344,210 2,212,746 140,169 2,072,577 149,375

2011 State Revolving Fund Loan

2.60%, due 4/03/2033 5,041,873 3,716,052 1,325,821 5,041,873 197,280

Total Long-Term Debt 27,161,120 $2,156,327 $3,962,518 25,354,929 $4,172,818

Less: 

Amount due within one year (3,962,516) (4,172,818)

Total Long-Term Debt, net $23,198,604 $21,182,111
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B. 1991 Subordinated Certificates of Participation 
 

The District issued Certificates of Participation on November 1, 1991, to finance the acquisition 

and construction of public improvements of the wastewater and sewage systems.  The bonds are 

payable from revenues of the District.  The principal and interest for the 1991 Certificates of 

Participation start maturing on December 1, 2010 and every year thereafter through fiscal year 

2017.   

 

C. 1997 State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan 

 

The District entered into a loan contract with the State of California (State Water Resources 

Control Board) on March 5, 1997, for the purpose of financing the Pittsburg Conveyance System 

Improvement Project.  The loan amount totals $3,611,046 with a stated interest rate of 1.80% per 

annum.  Principal payments are due annually beginning in 1999 through the fiscal year 2017, and 

are payable from revenues of the District. 

 

D. 2010 State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan 

 

The District entered into a loan contract with the State of California (State Water Resources 

Control Board) on July 8, 2009, for the purpose of financing the Antioch/Delta Diablo Sanitation 

District Recycled Water Project.  The loan amount totals $6,358,425 with a stated interest rate of 

.077% per annum over a 20-year term.  The City of Antioch owes the District $5,000,000 of this 

amount as part of their cost share for the Recycled Water Antioch Project (see Note 3-Notes 

Receivable).  Principal payments are due annually beginning on December 31, 2011 through the 

fiscal year 2030.   

 

E. 2011 Installment Sale Agreement 

 

On June 9, 2011, the District entered into an installment sale agreement (agreement) with 

Municipal Finance Corporation, which was subsequently assigned to City National Bank on June 

22, 2011, for the purpose of financing a solar energy project.  The agreement amount totals 

$2,344,210 with a stated interest of 4.9% per annum, and is payable from revenues of the 

District.  Principal and interest payments are due semi-annually on December 24 and June 24, 

commencing December 24, 2011 and maturing on June 24, 2031.   

 

F. 2011 State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan 

 

The District entered into a loan contract with the State of California (State Water Resources 

Control Board) on March 25, 2011, for the purpose of financing the Aeration System 

Improvement Project.  The loan amount totals $6,343,146 with a stated interest rate of 2.60% per 

annum.   During fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the District drew down $1,325,821 of the 

available funds.  Principal payments will be due annually beginning on April 3, 2014 through the 

fiscal year 2033.  The principal and interest payments will be payable from all net revenue of the 

District. 
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G. Debt Service Requirements 
 

 Annual debt service requirements are shown below for all long-term debt: 

 

For The Year

 Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2014 $4,172,818 $248,160 $4,420,978

2015 3,530,291 897,988 4,428,279

2016 3,378,141 1,047,515 4,425,656

2017 4,065,914 235,966 4,301,880

2018 590,180 188,195 778,375

 2019 - 2023 3,142,565 799,508 3,942,073

 2024 - 2028 3,518,200 515,302 4,033,502

 2029 - 2033 2,956,820 164,684 3,121,504

Total payments due $25,354,929 $4,097,318 $29,452,247
 

 

NOTE 8 – RETIREMENT PLAN 

 

A. Pension Plan 

 

All District employees are eligible to participate in pension plans offered by California Public 

Employees Retirement System (CALPERS), an agent multiple employer defined benefit pension 

plan which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for its participating member 

employers.  CALPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living 

adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and 

beneficiaries.  The District’s employees participate in the Miscellaneous (non-safety) Employee 

Plans.  Benefit provisions under both Plans are established by State statute and District resolution.  

Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment.  

Funding contributions for the Plan are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by 

CALPERS; the District must contribute these amounts.   

 

The Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) of 2013 was created with the passing of 

Assembly Bill 340 (AB 340) signed by the Governor on September 2012.  PEPRA implemented 

new benefit formulas, final compensation period and new contribution requirements for new 

employees hired on or after January 1, 2013, who meet the definition of “new member” under this 

bill.   
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The table below reflects the Plans’ provisions and benefits in accordance with PEPRA at June 30, 

2013, are summarized as follows: 

 

Tier I Tier II Tier III

Hire date Prior to 6/30/12 6/30/12 to 12/31/12 and On or after 1/1/13; new

employees hired on or member

after 1/1/13 who are not

a "new member"

Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service

Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life Monthly for life

Retirement Age 55                                  55                                  62                                  

Monthly benefits, as a % of annual salary 2.7% 2.0% 2.0%

Required employee contribution rates 8.0% 7.0% 6.5%

Required employer contribution rates 15.996% 10.868% 6.700%

Miscellaneous

 
CALPERS determines contribution requirements using a modification of the Entry Age Normal 

Method. Under this method, the District’s total normal benefit cost for each employee from date of 

hire to date of retirement is expressed as a level percentage of the related total payroll cost.  Normal 

benefit cost under this method is the level amount the District must pay annually to fund an 

employee’s projected retirement benefit. This level percentage of payroll method is used to amortize 

any unfunded actuarial liabilities.  The actuarial assumptions used to compute contribution 

requirements are also used to compute the actuarial accrued liability.  The District does not have a net 

pension obligation since it pays these actuarially required contributions monthly. 

 

CALPERS uses the market related value method of valuing the Plan’s assets.  An investment rate of 

return of 7.75%  has been assumed in the past, but was revised to 7.5% for the future valuations, 

including inflation at 2.75%.  Annual salary increases are assumed to vary by duration of service.  

Changes in liability due to plan amendments, changes in actuarial assumptions, or changes in 

actuarial methods are amortized as a level percentage of payroll on a closed basis over twenty years.  

Investment gains and losses are accumulated as they are realized and ten percent of the net balance is 

amortized annually. 

 

As required by State law, effective July 1, 2005, the District’s Miscellaneous Plan was terminated, 

and the employees in the plan were required by CALPERS to join new State-wide pools.  One of 

the conditions of entry to these pools was that the District true-up any unfunded liabilities in the 

former Plans, either by paying cash or by increasing its future contribution rates through a Side 

Fund offered by CALPERS.  The District satisfied its Miscellaneous Plan’s unfunded liability of 

$6,512,365 by agreeing to contribute that amount to the Side Fund through an addition to its normal 

contribution rates over the next 6 years as of June 30, 2010.  In October 2012, the District fully 

repaid its Side Fund by paying a lump sum of $3,856,463.  
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 The required contributions and related rates for the year ended June 30 were as follows: 

 

Annual 

Pension 

Cost (APC)

Contribution 

Amount

Percent APC 

Contributed

Contribution 

Rate

2013 $2,137,266 100% 16.00%

2012 1,958,493 100% 25.00%

2011 1,709,454 100% 22.96%
 

 

 CalPERS’ latest available actuarial value (which differs from market value) and funding progress are 

set forth below at their actuarial valuation of June 30, 2011. 

 

Miscellaneous Plan - State Pool:

Actuarial

Unfunded

Entry Age Unfunded Annual (Overfunded)

Valuation Accrued Value of (Overfunded) Funded Covered Liability as %

Date Liability Assets Liability Ratio Payroll of Payroll

2011 $2,486,708,579 $1,981,073,089 $505,635,490 79.67% $427,300,410 118.33%

2010 2,297,871,345 1,815,671,616 482,199,729 79.02% 434,023,381 111.10%

2009 2,140,438,884 1,674,260,302 466,178,582 78.22% 440,071,499 105.93%  
Audited annual financial statements are available from CALPERS at P.O. Box 942709, Sacramento, 

CA  94229-2709. 

 

Actuarially required contributions were $2,137,266, $1,958,493 and $1,709,454 for fiscal years 

2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  The District made these contributions as required, together with 

certain immaterial amounts required as the result of the payment of overtime and other additional 

employee compensation. 

 

NOTE 9 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

 

The District follows the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 

45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 

Pensions.  This Statement established uniform financial reporting standards for employers 

providing postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB).  Required disclosures are 

presented below. 

 

A. Plan Description and Funding Policy 

 

The District provides postretirement health care benefits to eligible retirees in accordance with 

Memorandums of Understanding (M.O.U.s) with employee groups. In accordance with the 

M.O.U.s, the District contracts with CalPERS to provide post-retirement health benefits through the 

CalPERS PEMHCA program, which provides for vesting at age 50 with five (5) years of service.  

The District implemented the California State Vesting Program for Retiree Health Care as regulated 

by Government Code 22893 by resolution (8/2008).   
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All District employees hired after the implementation date (01/01/2009), will be enrolled in the 

State’s Vesting Program, which starts fifty (50%) medical benefit at age 50 with 10 years of 

service, increasing by 5% for each additional year of service to 100% with 20 years of service.  The 

District contribution for eligible retirees (and spouses) is continued at the rate in effect each year.  

The cost of the benefits provided by the plan is currently being pre-funded in an irrevocable trust by 

the District.  The District’s plans to fund the benefits provided under the plan over a 30-year 

horizon, with minimal impacts to District rate payers.  Upon adoption of the annual fiscal year 

operating budget, the District will transfer all funds budgeted for retiree medical premiums to its 

OPEB Trust Fund.  Additional annual funding of the annual required contributions (ARC) will be 

set by the District Board from all or part of the following sources, in the order listed below: 

 

1. Unanticipated revenue streams (either one-time or on-going) 

2. Sewer Service Charge revenues exceed planned levels for the prior fiscal year 

3. Unused wastewater operating contingency funds from the prior fiscal year 

4. Wastewater operating budget savings from the prior fiscal year 

5. Ad valorem tax revenues 

6. The wastewater general fund 

 

On July 14, 2011, the Board adopted the District’s Retiree Health Funding Plan which outlines that 

employees will begin contributing 1% of their salaries to the OPEB trust in July 2011; that these 

contributions will increase to 2% of salaries in July 2011 and to 3% of salaries in July 2012. It also 

covers all of the other key elements of the Principles of Agreement such as 1) employee 

contributions are made on a pre-tax basis and are included in employee compensation for CalPERS 

retirement purposes; 2) the District at least match the annual employee contributions; 3) the District 

make a good faith effort to fully fund the remaining ARC each year; and 4) that in recognition of 

the employees’ initiative in assisting in funding the OPEB obligation, the terms of the bargaining 

units’ MOU with the District be extended by three years to June 30, 2018. 

 

At June 30, 2013, 31 retirees were receiving benefits. 

 

B. Actuarial Assumptions 
 

The annual required contribution (ARC) was determined as part of a June 30, 2012 actuarial 

valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method.  This is a projected benefit cost method, 

which takes into account those benefits that are expected to be earned in the future as well as those 

already accrued.  The actuarial assumptions included (a) 6.5% investment rate of return, (b) 3.25% 

projected annual salary increase, (c) 3% inflation rate and (d) health care cost trend rates from 5.0% 

to 8.9% for medical benefits.  The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that 

smooth the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of 

assets.  Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and actuarial valuations involve 

estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into 

the future.  Actuarially determined amounts are subject to revision at least tri-ennially as results are 

compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.  The District’s OPEB 

unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll 

using a 30 year amortization period on a closed basis.  As of June 30, 2012, there were 26-years 

remaining in the initial 30-year amortization period. 
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DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 

 

NOTE 9 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 

 

Funding Progress and Funded Status  

 

The District’s Net OPEB Asset is recorded in the Statement of Net Position and is calculated as 

follows: 

 

Net OPEB Obligation (Asset) at June 30, 2011 $516,363

Annual OPEB cost - fiscal 2011/2012:

   Annual required contribution (ARC) $962,000

   Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 26,000

 Adjustments to ARC (23,000)

    Annual OPEB cost - fiscal 2011/2012 965,000

Less contributions made during fiscal year 2011/2012:

  Contributions made to PARS irrevocable trust (1,262,809)

District's portion of current year premiums paid (235,535)

     Total contributions (1,498,344)

(Decrease) in net OPEB obligation (533,344)

Net OPEB Obligation (Asset) at June 30, 2012 (16,981)

Annual OPEB cost - fiscal 2012/2013:

   Annual required contribution (ARC) 974,000

   Interest on Net OPEB Asset (1)

 Adjustments to ARC 1

    Annual OPEB cost - fiscal 2012/2013 974,000

Less contributions made during fiscal year 2012/2013:

  Contributions made to PARS irrevocable trust 1,548,765

     Total contributions 1,548,765

Increase in net OPEB asset (574,765)

Net OPEB Obligation (Asset) at June 30, 2013 ($591,746)
 

 

As of the June 30, 2012 Actuarial Valuation, the actuarial accrued liability (AAL) representing the 

present value of future benefits amounted to $10,963,000. 
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DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 

 

NOTE 9 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 

 

The Plan’s annual required contributions and actual contributions for fiscal years ended June 30, is set 

forth below: 

Fiscal Year

Annual OPEB 

Cost (AOC)

Actual 

Contribution

Percentage of 

AOC 

Contributed

Net OPEB 

Obligation 

(Asset)

June 30, 2013 $974,000 $1,548,765 159% ($591,746)

June 30, 2012 965,000 1,498,344 155% (16,981)

June 30, 2011 1,040,000 1,292,127 124% 516,363  
 

The Schedule of Funding Progress presents trend information about whether the actuarial value of 

plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for 

benefits.  Trend data from the last three actuarial studies are presented below: 

 
Unfunded

Unfunded (Overfunded)

Entry Age (Overfunded) Actuarial

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Liability as

Actuarial Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered Percentage of

Valuation Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

Date (A) (B) (A – B) (A/B) (C) [(A – B)/C]

June 30, 2012 $3,416,000 $10,963,000 $7,547,000 31.16% $8,054,000 93.70%

June 30, 2010 2,163,000 7,949,000 5,786,000 27.21% 7,602,000 76.11%

March 2, 2010 770,000 6,817,000 6,047,000 11.30% 7,109,000 85.06%  
NOTE 10 – RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 

of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disaster.  The District joined 

together with other entities to form the California Sanitation Risk Management Authority 

(CSRMA), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and 

insurance program for 60 member entities.  The purpose of CSRMA is to spread the adverse effects 

of losses among the member entities and to purchase excess insurance as a group, thereby reducing 

its cost.  The District pays an annual premium to CSRMA for its general liability, property damage, 

workers compensation insurance and automobile coverage. 

 

CSRMA is governed by a Board composed of one representative from each member agency.  The 

Board controls the operations of CSRMA including selection of management and approval of 

operating budgets, independent of any influence by member entities. 

 

CSRMA is not a component unit of the District and the District’s share of assets, liabilities, and 

equity has not been calculated. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 

 

NOTE 10 – RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 

 

The following is a summary of the insurance policies in force carried by the Authority as of June 

30, 2013: 

 
Type of Coverage Limits Deductibles

General Liability $15,500,000 $100,000

Excess General Liability 25,500,000 15,500,000

Worker's Compensation 750,000 None 

Excess Worker's Compensation Liability Statutory Limit 750,000

Special Form Property 137,201,028 25,000

Public Entity Physical Damage 689,936 1,000/2,000

Commercial Crime - Employee Dishonesty, Forgery

     or Alteration 1,000,000 10,000

Commercial Crime - Theft, Disappearance,

     Destruction, or Computer Fraud 500,000 10,000

Fiduciary Liability 1,000,000 1,000

Differences in Conditions - Earthquake/Flood 5,000,000 50,000  
 

The District also maintains employee fidelity bonds to protect against the risk of employee theft 

or defalcation.  Settled claims for CSRMA or employee fidelity bonds have not exceeded 

coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.  Audited financial statements of CSRMA may be 

obtained at 500 Washington Street, Suite 300, San Francisco, CA 94111-2933. 

 

NOTE 11 – NET POSITION  

 

Net Position is the excess of all the District’s assets and deferred outflows over all its liabilities 

and deferred inflows, regardless of fund.  Net Position is divided into three captions.  These 

captions apply only to Net Position, which is determined only at the District-wide level, and are 

described below: 

 

Net investment in Capital Assets describes the portion of Net Positions which is represented by the 

current net book value of the District’s capital assets, less the outstanding balance of any debt issued 

to finance these assets. 

 

Restricted describes the portion of Net Position which is restricted as to use by the terms and 

conditions of agreements with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other restrictions 

which the District cannot unilaterally alter.  

  

Unrestricted describes the portion of Net Position which is not restricted to use. 
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NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

 

A. Lease Revenue 

 

 Delta Energy Center, LLC (DEC) and Calpine Corporation entered into an operating lease with 

the District, effective December 11, 2002, to lease real property located at 2600 Pittsburg-

Antioch Highway, in Pittsburg, for a cooling tower site.  The base rent for the leased land started 

at $32,500 per year and is set to escalate every five years based on changes in the Consumer 

Price Index.  The current rate is $35,773 per year.  The area leased is 260 feet by 50 feet, on land 

that is not targeted for District improvements.  The agreement terminates May 31, 2050.  

Minimum future rentals total $1,323,601 at June 30, 2013.  The lessee, DEC, retains an option to 

terminate the lease agreement by providing a thirty-day written notice to the District.  The total 

remaining minimum future rental payments are as follows: 

 

For the Year 

Ending June 30

Minimum 

Future Rentals

2014 $35,773

2015 35,773

2016 35,773

2017 35,773

2018 35,773

2019 - 2023 178,865

2024 - 2028 178,865

2029 - 2033 178,865

2034 - 2038 178,865

2039 - 2043 178,865

2044 - 2048 178,865

2049 - 2050 71,546

$1,323,601

 
B. Joint Power Agreement with City of Pittsburg 

 

Delta Diablo Sanitation District and the City of Pittsburg (City) entered into a Joint Powers 

Agreement on September 24, 1999, for the purpose of development and operation of a “Recycled 

Water Program” (the Project).  Under the provisions of the agreement, the Project is to be jointly 

funded by the District and the City.  The City will be responsible for the design and construction 

of the Project, and the District will own and operate the system once construction is complete.  

The original project and additional retro-fitting costs has been completed and amounted to 

$7,305,239 in project expenditures as of June 30, 2013.   
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NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued) 

 

The funding sources for the Project include approximately $3,095,989 costs from the City of 

Pittsburg Redevelopment Agency.  The District has secured for its share of the project costs 

funding as follows: $1,259,250 Prop 50, Chapter 7, WRFP grant award from a State Water 

Resources Control Board (SWRCB), $1,000,000 Prop 50, Chapter 8, IRWMP sub-grant award 

from the SWRCB through Contra Costa Water District (CCWD) and a $1,650,000 grant (net) 

from the U.S. Department of Interior, Bureau of Reclamation.  When the Federal appropriations 

were received, it was repaid to wastewater ad valorem taxes, which originally provided the 

advance funding for this project.  In the previous fiscal year, the District was able to secure an 

increase of the sub-grant award from the SWRCB through CCWD of $200,000 to fund additional 

project costs that was completed as of June 30, 2013.  This amount was passed-through to the 

City of Pittsburg.  As of June 30, 2013, the District has remitted $4,109,248 to the City of 

Pittsburg for Project costs.  

 

C. Joint Power Agreement with City of Antioch 

 

Delta Diablo Sanitation District and the City of Antioch (City) entered into a Joint Powers 

Agreement on November 18, 2003, for the purpose of development and operation of a “Recycled 

Water Program” (the Project).  Under the provisions of the agreement, the Project is to be jointly 

funded (50/50) by the District and the City.  The District is authorized to design, construct, own, 

operate and regulate the facilities.  This project has been completed this fiscal year. 

 

The Project was originally estimated to cost $12,800,000, with each agency’s share estimated at 

$6,400,000  The District plans to fund its share of the Project costs through the following 

funding sources: $6,322,312 State Revolving Fund Loan (SRF), $2,563,697 Prop 13 WRFP grant 

award from a State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB), $600,000 Prop 50, Chapter 8, 

IRWMP sub-grant award from the SWRCB through Contra Costa Water District, two grants 

totaling $2,131,000 from the U.S. Department of Interior, Bureau of Reclamation with the 

balance funded by the District from wastewater ad valorem taxes. The wastewater ad valorem 

taxes will be repaid if Federal and or State Appropriations applied for are received.  The SRF 

loan of $6,322,312 was secured by the District with .077% interest for this project.  The City of 

Antioch funded its share of the project costs primarily from the SRF loan of up to $5,000,000.  

The City will reimburse the District for about 79% of the SRF loan payments with the balance of 

their share of the project costs to be paid monthly through a Recycled Water surcharge.  The 

Antioch Recycled Water surcharge will be assessed by the District for 20 years at 4.25% interest.  

As of June 30, 2013, the District has incurred expenditures of $12,977,936 for this project. 

 

D.  Purchase Commitments 

 
The District has a number of purchase commitments for ongoing operating and capital projects 

that involves multi-year contracts.  Purchase commitments related to these multi-year contracts 

are approximately $2,152,898 and $4,305,074 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.   
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Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)    

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

The Schedule of Funding Progress presents trend information about whether the actuarial 

value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued 

liability for benefits.  Trend data from the last three actuarial studies are presented below: 

      

Unfunded 

   

Unfunded 

  

(Overfunded) 

  

Entry Age (Overfunded) 

  

Actuarial 

 

Actuarial  Actuarial Actuarial 

  

Liability as 

Actuarial Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered Percentage of  

Valuation  Assets  Liability Liability Ratio Payroll 
Covered 

Payroll 

Date (A) (B) (A-B) (A/B) (C) (A-B)/C) 

6/30/2012 $3,416,000  $10,963,000  $7,547,000  31.16% $8,054,000  93.70% 

6/30/2010 2,163,000 7,949,000 5,786,000 27.21% 7,602,000 76.11% 

3/2/2010 770,000 6,817,000 6,047,000 11.30% 7,109,000 85.06% 

 

Additional information on OPEB is shown in Note 9 of the financial statements. As data 

becomes available, additional funding progress will be presented. 
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DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2013

Waste Waste Water Recycled Hazardous

     Water 
(A)

  Expansion
 (B)

Water Facility Waste

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash $998,425 $312,672 $16,844 $7,837

Investments 17,160,592 81,469 1,917,186 323,000

Accounts receivable 733,788 419,566 133,931

Interfund receivable 5,700,000 375,000

Interest receivable 10,595 101 1,236

Current portion of notes receivable 2,465 312,808 1,462

Current portion of employee computer loans receivable 11,727

Inventory 674,666 74,278

Prepaid expenses 62,348 4,997

Total current assets 25,352,141 396,707 3,121,915 466,230

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:

Restricted cash and investments 326,358 1,762,463

Cash and investments 2,892,655

CAPITAL ASSETS:

Capital assets, non depreciable 14,320,077 168,219 1,593,388

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 90,321,806 34,471,327 1,539,246

Total capital assets, net 104,641,883 168,219 36,064,715 1,539,246

OTHER ASSETS

Notes receivable less current portion 5,585,751 69,220

Employee notes receivable less current portion 5,958

Net OPEB asset 591,746

Total other assets 597,704 5,585,751 69,220

Total Noncurrent Assets 108,458,600 1,930,682 41,650,466 1,608,466

TOTAL ASSETS 133,810,741 2,327,389 44,772,381 2,074,696

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable 688,527 1,697 94,063 151,050

Accrued payroll and benefits 664,026 387 8,614 2,541

Interfund payable 100,000 5,700,000 275,000

Deposits payable 12,658

Deferred revenue 651,970 70,682

Compensated absences - due within one year 646,977

Current portion of long-term debt 346,655 983,010 314,445

Accreted interest 2,528,708

Accrued interest payable 7,473

Total current liabilities 3,110,813 9,221,275 692,122 224,273

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Long-term debt, net of current portion:

Certificates of participation 2,060,422

State revolving fund loans 4,844,593 627,237 5,382,767

Installment sale agreement 1,923,202

Accreted interest 6,343,890

Compensated absences - due in more than one year 232,069

Property tax refund, net of current portion 31,121

Total long-term liabilities 7,030,985 9,031,549 5,382,767

TOTAL LIABILITIES 10,141,798 18,252,824 6,074,889 224,273

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 97,527,433 (3,502,450) 30,367,503 1,539,246

Restricted for debt service 326,358 1,762,463

Restricted for capital projects

Unrestricted 25,815,152 (14,185,448) 8,329,989 311,177

TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICITS) $123,668,943 ($15,925,435) $38,697,492 $1,850,423

(A)
  Wastewater is funded by user charges and is comprised of operations & maintenance, capital assets, and capital asset replacement for

wastewater treatment and operations.  Starting fiscal year 11/12 includes designations for Advanced Treatment Plant.

(B)
  Wastewater Expansion is funded by developers for connection fees.

(C)
  Street Sweeping is funded by user charges.  Street sweeping activities prior to fiscal year 06/07 were reported under Waste Water.

(D)
  Bay Point is funded by user charges.  Bay Point activities prior to fiscal year 06/07 were reported under Waste Water.
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Street

        Sweeping 
(C)

    Bay Point 
(D)

Total

$39,134 $215,988 $1,590,900

854,343 2,867,578 23,204,168

$154 11,571 1,299,010

6,075,000

22 1,609 13,563

316,735

11,727

748,944

67,345

893,653 3,096,746 33,327,392

2,088,821

2,892,655

39,810 16,121,494

2,133,090 128,465,469

2,172,900 144,586,963

5,654,971

5,958

591,746

6,252,675

2,172,900 155,821,114

893,653 5,269,646 189,148,506

65,489 13,833 1,014,659

92 5,613 681,273

6,075,000

12,658

722,652

646,977

1,644,110

2,528,708

7,473

65,581 19,446 13,333,510

2,060,422

10,854,597

1,923,202

6,343,890

232,069

31,121

21,445,301

65,581 19,446 34,778,811

2,172,900 128,104,632

2,088,821

828,072 3,077,300 24,176,242

$828,072 $5,250,200 $154,369,695
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Household

Waste Waste Water Recycled Hazardous

     Water 
(A)

  Expansion
 (B)

Water Facility Waste         Sweeping 
(C)

OPERATING REVENUES

Service charges $20,641,440 $3,707,951

Discharge permits 186,200

Household hazardous waste operating fees $457,034

Miscellaneous 552,728 1,938

Work for others 1,092,449 384,197 3,059

Total operating revenues 22,472,817 4,092,148 462,031

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 16,074,554 849,009 210,466

Chemicals 670,008 641,710

Depreciation 5,121,434 1,253,383 38,188

Office expense 801,387 17,399 17,842

Operating expense 698,684 88,532 18,878

Outside services and maintenance 2,071,264 $1,500 656,336 429,467

Travel and meetings 86,212 740 3,111

Utilities 1,053,020 390,514 490

Other 68,007

Total operating expenses 26,644,570 1,500 3,897,623 718,442

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (4,171,753) (1,500) 194,525 (256,411)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest expense (420) (861,648) (6,037)

Interest income 78,764 37,841 57,806 5,143

Capital facilities capacity charges 2,280,985

Lease revenue 36,125

Gain on sale of assets 20,382

State grants (1,742)

Federal grants 205,043

Subgrants 272,185

Property taxes 1,442,828 184,878

Total nonoperating revenues 1,575,937 1,642,056 528,997 5,143

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS (2,595,816) 1,640,556 723,522 (251,268)

Transfers In 1,526,099 760,671 1,012,414

Transfers (Out) (2,158,775) (1,140,409)

Total transfers in (out) (632,676) 760,671 (1,140,409) 1,012,414

NET INCOME (LOSS) AFTER TRANSFERS (3,228,492) 2,401,227 (416,887) 761,146

NET POSITION (DEFICITS), BEGINNING OF YEAR 126,897,435 (18,326,662) 39,114,379 1,089,277

NET POSITION (DEFICITS), END OF YEAR $123,668,943 ($15,925,435) $38,697,492 $1,850,423

(A)
  Wastewater is funded by user charges and is comprised of operations & maintenance, capital assets, and capital asset replacement for

wastewater treatment and operations.  Starting fiscal year 11/12 includes designations for Advanced Treatment Plant.
(B)

  Wastewater Expansion is funded by developers for connection fees.

(C)
  Street Sweeping is funded by user charges.  Street sweeping activities prior to fiscal year 06/07 were reported under Waste Water.

(D)
  Bay Point is funded by user charges.  Bay Point activities prior to fiscal year 06/07 were reported under Waste Water.

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE

DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
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Street

        Sweeping 
(C)

    Bay Point 
(D)

Total

$593,526 $881,912 $25,824,829

186,200

457,034

554,666

1,479,705

593,526 881,912 28,502,434

13,419 446,271 17,593,719

1,311,718

93,343 6,506,348

1,254 2,474 840,356

2 6,341 812,437

527,833 124,458 3,810,858

726 90,789

1,444,024

60,913 128,920

542,508 734,526 32,539,169

51,018 147,386 (4,036,735)

(868,105)

1,516 8,069 189,139

2,280,985

36,125

20,382

(1,742)

205,043

272,185

1,627,706

1,516 8,069 3,761,718

52,534 155,455 (275,017)

3,299,184

(3,299,184)

52,534 155,455 (275,017)

775,538 5,094,745 154,644,712

$828,072 $5,250,200 $154,369,695
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Delta Discovery Voyage for Students 



 

This section of the District’s comprehensive annual report provides detailed information as a 

context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and 

required supplementary information says about the District’s overall financial health. 

Information provided in this section is not subject to an independent audit.  

Financial Trends           

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the District’s 

financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Net Position by Component ................................................................................            59 

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position ….            60 

Total Revenues By Source .................................................................................            61 

Total Expenses By Category ..............................................................................            62 

Revenue Capacity           

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District’s most significant 

revenue sources. 

Major Revenue Base and Rates .......................................................................             63 

Service Charges and Service Charges as a Percentage  

    of Total Operating Revenue …………………………................................             64 

Principal Customers ……………………........................................................             64 

Debt Capacity            

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the affordability of the District’s 

current level of outstanding debt and its ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

Outstanding Debt By Type and Debt per Capita.............................................              65 

Pledged-Revenue Coverage ............................................................................              66 
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Demographics and Economic Information       

These schedules contain demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the 

environment within which the District’s financial activities take place. 

Principal Employers in Contra Costa County ...............................................            67 

Demographics and Economic Statistics  - District Service Area  

   and Contra Costa County ...........................................................................            68 

Operating Information          

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the 
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Investment in 

capital assets, net 

of related debt

78,370$   79,735$   83,254$   97,856$   106,986$ 112,309$     115,711$ 124,147$ 129,565$ * 128,105$ 

Restricted 12,253 16,766 14,889 8,332 6,314 4,903 6,589 1,796 2,307 2,089

Unrestricted 33,463 34,035 34,586 31,198 29,465 27,763 28,654 28,186 22,772 * 24,176

124,086$ 130,536$ 132,730$ 137,387$ 142,765$ 144,974$     150,954$ 154,130$ 154,645$ 154,370$ 

Source: Delta Diablo Sanitation District Audited Financial Statements

* Revisions.

Business-type 

activities

Total business-type 

activities net 

position

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT

Statement of Net Position by Component - Financial Trends

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting, amounts shown in thousands)
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Operating Revenues

Service Charges 
(1)

15,487$ 16,847$ 17,516$  17,563$ 18,767$ 19,481$ 20,868$  21,650$  23,741$  25,825$ 

Other Operating Revenues 1,500 1,331 1,907 1,362 1,604 2,567 6,859 3,029 2,616 2,678

Total Operating Revenues 16,987 18,178 19,423 18,925 20,371 22,048 27,727 24,680 26,357 28,502

Operating Expenses

Salaries and Benefits 7,549 8,210 8,476 8,718 10,156 12,651 12,806 13,089 13,893 17,594 (2)

Chemicals and Utilties 2,496 2,626 2,834 2,786 3,006 3,142 2,714 2,586 2,816 2,756

Depreciation and amortization 4,171 4,237 4,208 4,539 4,610 4,868 6,411 5,990 6,279 6,506

Other Operating Expenses 5,702 4,323 5,399 4,942 5,044 5,687 5,319 4,954 5,483 5,683

Total Operating Expenses 19,919 19,395 20,918 20,985 22,817 26,348 27,250 26,620 28,471 32,539

Net Operating Revenues (Expenses) (2,932) (1,217) (1,495) (2,061) (2,446) (4,300) 477 (1,941) (2,114) (4,037) (2)

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest Revenue 852 944 1,579 2,210 2,033 1,256 569 276 151 189

Interest Expense (1,619) (1,577) (1,538) (1,490) (1,491) (1,415) (1,302) (1,175) (1,026) (868)

Other Non-operating Revenues 1,609 512 596 2,322 2,325 2,185 1,672 1,698 1,632 1,684

Other Non-operating Expense (33) 0 (17) (5) 0 0 (1,645) 0 0 0

Capacity Charges - Connection Fees 4,133 7,789 3,069 3,681 4,175 2,672 1,393 2,161 1,688 2,281

Other Capital Contributions 0 0 0 0 781 1,809 4,816 2,156 183 475

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 4,942 7,667 3,688 6,718 7,824 6,509 5,504 5,116 2,629 3,762

Changes in Net Position

Business-Type Activities 2,010$   6,450$   2,193$    4,657$   5,378$   2,209$   5,980$    3,175$    515$       (275)$     (2)

Source: Delta Diablo Sanitation District Audited Financial Statements

Note: 
(1)

 Service Charges is comprised of Wastewater Sewer Service, Recycled Water, Street Sweeping and Baypoint Collection Charges.

          
(2)

 Includes a one-time side fund payment made to CalPERS of $3.9M.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Financial Trends

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting, amounts shown in thousands)
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Fiscal Other Other Other 

Year Service Charges 
(1)

Operating Interest Non-Operating Capacity Charges Capital Contributions Total

2004 $15,486,812 $1,499,970 $851,939 $1,608,502 $4,133,350 $0 $23,580,573

2005 16,847,051 1,330,867 943,510 511,825 7,788,810 0 27,422,063

2006 17,516,131 1,906,618 1,579,050 596,098 3,068,671 0 24,666,568

2007 17,562,513 1,362,117 2,209,885 2,322,158 3,681,423 0 27,138,096

2008 18,767,238 1,603,698 2,033,255 2,325,452 4,175,396 780,538
(2)

29,685,577

2009 19,481,408 2,567,079 1,256,487 2,185,332 2,672,259 1,809,067
(2)

29,971,632

2010 20,867,811 6,858,859 568,784 1,672,051 1,393,342 4,816,033
(2)

36,176,880

2011 21,650,025 3,029,475 275,653 1,698,209 2,160,678 2,156,104
(2)

30,970,144

2012 23,741,202 2,615,692 151,223 1,632,411 1,687,667 183,491
(2)

30,011,686

2013 25,824,829 2,677,605 189,139 1,684,213 2,280,985 475,486
(2)

33,132,257

Source: Delta Diablo Sanitation District Audited Financial Statements

Note:
(1)

 Service Charges is comprised of Wastewater Sewer Service, Recycled Water, Street Sweeping and Baypoint Collection Charges.
(2)

 In FY2008-2013, the District received capital contributions either in the form of State, Subgrants and/or Federal grants primarily for the Recycled Water projects.

DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT

Total Revenues By Source - Financial Trends

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Revenue Sources
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Fiscal 

Year

Salaries & 

Benefits

Chemical & 

Utilities

Depreciation 

& 

Amortization

Other 

Operating 

Expenses

Interest 

Expense

Other Non-

operating 

Expense Total

2004 $7,549,462 $2,495,560 $4,171,380 $5,702,472 $1,619,047 $32,976 $21,570,897

2005 8,209,525 2,625,931 4,236,931 4,322,739 1,577,087 0 20,972,213

2006 8,476,065 2,834,343 4,208,483 5,398,840 1,538,144 17,232 22,473,107

2007 8,718,184 2,786,163 4,539,178 4,941,841 1,490,006 5,292 22,480,664

2008 10,156,386 3,006,081 4,609,696 5,044,407 1,490,729 0 24,307,299

2009 12,650,803 3,141,901 4,868,388 5,686,985 1,414,645 0 27,762,722

2010 12,806,405 2,713,909 6,411,047 5,318,723 1,301,793 1,644,748
(1)

30,196,625

2011 13,089,446 2,586,077 5,990,441 4,954,305 1,174,581 0 27,794,850

2012 13,892,968 2,815,572 6,279,367 5,483,266 1,025,593 0 29,496,766

2013 17,593,719
(2)

2,755,742 6,506,348 5,683,360 868,105 0 33,407,274

Source: DDSD Audited Financial Statements

Note:
(1)

 In FY2009-2010, the District incurred a one-time loss on disposition of capital assets.  
(2)

 Includes a one-time side fund payment made to CalPERS of $3.9M.

DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT

Total Expenses By Category - Financial Trends

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Expense Categories
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Fiscal

Year

Treatment & 

Conveyance
 (1)

Capital 
(2)

Total

Capacity 

Charges 
(3)

2004 $140 $28 $168 $4,192

2005 145                 28                        173               4,192            

2006 151                 28                        179               4,192            

2007 158                 26                        184               4,444            

2008 166                 27                        193               4,444            

2009 174                 28                        202               4,444            

2010 183                 29                        211               4,444            

2011 191                 30                        222               4,444            

2012 201                 38                        238               4,444            

2013 211                 46                        257               4,444            

Source: Delta Diablo Sanitation District Rate Ordinance

Note:

DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT

Major Revenue Base and Rates  - Revenue Capacity

Last Ten Years

Annual Sewer Service Charge

(1) Average annual flat fee (Zones 1-3) per Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU). Multi-family properties, 

multiply # of ERU x annual flat fee.  Commercial user charges consists of an annual rate x hundred cubic 

feet water (HCF) of water consumed except for customers with 90 HCF or less of water consumed, which 

are assessed an annual flat fee.  

Note: (2) Average annual flat fee (Zones 1-3) for Capital Asset and Capital Asset Replacement.  Starting 

in FY11-12 includes an Advance Treatment Plant component.

Note: (3) Average Capital Facilities Capacity Charges (Zones 1-3) for new users per ERU connecting to 

the wastewater system.
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2003 - 2004

Service Charges:

Waste Water Sewer 12,853,373$     20,641,440$      

Recycled Water 1,672,444         3,707,951          

Street Sweeping 537,772            593,526            

Baypoint 423,223            881,912            

Total Service Charges 15,486,812$     25,824,829$      

Total Operating Revenues 16,986,782$     28,502,434$      

91% 91%

FY2003-2004 Percentage FY2012-2013 Percentage

Service Charge of Total Service Charge of Total

Business Annual Annual Annual Annual

Customer Type City Billing Rank Billings Billing Rank Billings

Calpine
(1)

Utility Pittsburg $1,932,859.72 1 12.5% $3,933,727.23 1 15.2%

Dow Chemicals Manufacturing Pittsburg 98,572 3 0.6% 225,680 2 0.9%

GWF Utility Pittsburg 99,230 2 0.6%

City of Antioch City Government Antioch 186,220 3 0.7%

City of Pittsburg City Government Pittsburg 163,225 4 0.6%

Woodland Hills Housing Pittsburg 97,833 4 0.6% 144,584 5 0.6%

Angelica Healthcare Service Antioch/Pittsburg
(2)

96,562 5 0.6% 142,177 6 0.6%

Antioch High School School Antioch 106,261 7 0.4%

Rivershore Apartments Housing Bay Point 64,117 7 0.4% 92,600 8 0.4%

Villas at San Marcos Housing Pittsburg 89,631 9 0.3%

Pittsburg Unified School District School Pittsburg 89,515 10 0.3%

USS Posco Manufacturing Pittsburg 82,786 6 0.5%

Meadows Mobile Home Park Housing Pittsburg 53,952 8 0.3%

Emerald Cove Apartments Housing Bay Point 51,817 9 0.3%

Oakwood Apartments Housing Antioch 51,780 10 0.3%

All Other
(3)

Bay Point/Pittsburg/Antioch 12,857,304 83.0% 20,651,207 80.0%

Total 15,486,812$     100.0% 25,824,829$      100.0%

Source: Delta Diablo Sanitation District Audited Financial Statements and Billing Records   

DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT

 Service Charges and Service Charges as a Percentage of Total Operating Revenue - Revenue Capacity

Principal Customers - Revenue Capacity

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Note:
 (1) 

Calpine is the District's  largest  Recycled Water customer, data includes Recycled Water charges 
(2)

 Angelica Healthcare was in Antioch until FY2008-09 where it relocated to 

Pittsburg.  
(3) 

"All Other" customers (includes residential, commercial customers) when listed individually is less than 0.5% of Total Annual Service Charges Billings covering all three 

cities served.

Service Charges as a Percentage of Total 

Operating Revenue

2012 - 2013

Current Year and Nine Years Ago
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DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT

Outstanding Debt by Type and Debt Per Capita - Debt Capacity

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Type of Debt

Waste Water State of California Sewer Debt

Fiscal Certificates of Revolving Fund Refunding Installment Population Per

Year Participation 
(1)

Loans Revenue Bonds Capital Lease Note
(3)

Total Estimates
(5)

Capita
(6)

2004 $22,009,309 $2,491,011 $7,440,000 $270,875 $0 $32,211,195 168,835    $191

2005 21,702,611    2,319,260           6,080,000      185,288       -                  30,287,159    184,273    164   

2006 21,418,786    2,144,412           4,655,000      -                  -                  28,218,198    184,273    153   

2007 21,167,416    1,966,412           3,175,000      -                  -                  26,308,828    184,273    143   

2008 20,943,343    1,785,202           1,625,000      
(2)

-                  -                  24,353,545    184,273    132   

2009 20,746,820    1,600,725           -                     -                  -                  22,347,545    184,273    121   

2010 18,700,761    6,599,396           -                     -                  -                  25,300,157    186,985    135   

2011 16,517,749    7,580,161           -                     -                  2,344,210   26,442,120    186,985    141   

2012 14,193,806    10,754,568         
(4)

-                     -                  2,212,746   27,161,120    192,521    141   

2013 11,714,312    11,568,040         
(4)

-                     -                  2,072,577   25,354,929    192,521    132   

Source: Delta Diablo Sanitation District Audited Financial Statements and U.S. Census Bureau - Fact Sheets (population)

Note :  Debt amounts exclude any premiums, discounts, or other amortization amounts.
(1) 

Includes accreted interest. 
(2) 

Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds fully matured in 

FY2007-2008 
(3) 

Installment note is for financing the new solar project.
 (4)

 Includes new SRF Loan for the Aeration System Basin Project 
(5)

 Demographics and Economic 

Statistics (Statistical section) 
(6)

 Debt per Capita = Total Debt/Population Estimate. Decrease in FY2012-2013 primarily due to scheduled retirements.
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DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT

Pledged -  Revenue Coverage - Debt Capacity

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Net Revenue

Fiscal Gross Operating Available for Debt Service Requirements

Year Revenue
 (1)

Expenses 
(2)

Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage

2004 $23,580,573 $17,399,517 $6,181,056 $2,819,911 $1,164,140 $3,984,051 155%

2005 27,422,063 16,735,282 10,686,781 2,932,338 578,439 3,510,777 304%

2006 24,666,568 18,264,624 6,401,944 3,145,136 475,867 3,621,003 177%

2007 27,138,096 17,941,486 9,196,610 3,058,000 352,014 3,410,014 270%

2008 29,685,577 19,697,603 9,987,974 3,181,210 235,904 3,417,114 292%

2009 29,971,632 22,894,334 7,077,298 3,314,477 103,062 3,417,539 207%

2010 36,176,880 23,785,578 12,391,302 3,211,127 320,537 3,531,664 351%

2011 30,970,144 21,804,409 9,165,735 3,506,189 25,475 3,531,664 260%

2012 30,011,686 23,217,399 6,794,287 3,951,703 140,199 4,091,902 166%

2013 33,132,257 26,900,926
(3)

6,231,331
(3)

3,635,223 700,029 4,335,252 144%
(3)

Source: Delta Diablo Sanitation District Audited Financial Statements

Notes: Coverage factor required on 1991 Certificates of Participation (46% of total outstanding debt as of FY2012-2013) is 125%. 

Detail information on Long-term Debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
(1) 

All revenues including capacity charges and other capital contributions.
(2)

 Does not include depreciation and amortization.
(3)

 Includes a one-time side fund payment made to CalPERS side fund of $3.9M consequently decreasing the Net Revenue Available for

     Debt Service and its Coverage ratio for this fiscal year.
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2005 
(1)

Percentage Percentage

of Total of Total

Estimated County Estimated County 

Employer 
(1)

Industry 
(2)

Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment

John Muir Health Hospitals/Clinics 2,200 1 0.46%

Kaiser Foundation Hospital Hospitals/Clinics 2,300 3 0.48% 2,000 2 0.42%

Chevron Corporation Manufacturing 5,000 1 1.03% 1,329 3 0.28%

Target Corporation Retail 3,400 2 0.70% 1,262 4 0.26%

Walmart Stores Inc. Retail 1,150 5 0.24%

Contra Costa Newspapers Inc. Newspaper Publishing 1,140 6 0.24%

Doctors Medical Center Hospitals/Clinics 900 8 0.19% 937 7 0.19%

Shell/Martinez Refinery Manufacturing 1,000 6 0.21% 900 8 0.19%

Bio-Rad Laboratories Manufacturing 900 9 0.19%

Texaco Corporation Manufacturing 800 10 0.17%

USS Posco Industries Manufacturing 975 7 0.20%

Ladbrokes Casino San Pablo Casino

Kaiser Permanente Hospitals/Clinics

John Muir Medical Center Hospitals/Clinics 1,900 4 0.39%

John Muir/Mt. Diablo Medical Center Hospitals/Clinics 1,500 5 0.31%

Bank of the West Bank 800 9 0.17%

Aetna Health Services Health Services 600 10 0.12%

All Others 465,825 536,100

Total 484,200
(3)

3.80% 548,718
(4)

2.64%

Note: Delta Diablo Sanitation District is located in Contra Costa County and serves 3 cities (Bay Point, Pittsburg and Antioch) within the county.

Source: 
(1) 

Contra Costa County Comprehensive Annual Financial Report FY2012-2013, statiscal section (excludes government employers).  2004 Principal Employer information not readily available.    
(2) 

State of California, Employment Development Department, Major Employers (Industry Type) 
(3)

 State of California, Employment Development Department, 2005 annual, not adjusted.
  (4)

 State of California, 

Employment Development Department, 2013 annual, not adjusted.  

DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT

 Principal Employers in Contra Costa County - Demographics and Economic Information

Current Year and Eight Years Ago

2013 
(1)

(Unaudited)
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 Population

Per Capita 

Personal 

Income

Average Annual 

Unemployment 

Rate

Bay Point 

(Zone 1)

Pittsburg 

(Zone 2)

Antioch 

(Zone 3) Total

Fiscal Year 

Ended, June 30 Total Total Total

2004 * 21,534 56,769 90,532 168,835 2004 1,005,698 $49,275 5.4%

2005 ** 22,041 62,877 99,355 184,273 2005 1,016,372 51,566 5.1%

2006 ** 22,041 62,877 99,355 184,273 2006 1,025,436 55,241 4.5%

2007 ** 22,041 62,877 99,355 184,273 2007 1,035,097 57,881 4.7%

2008 ** 22,041 62,877 99,355 184,273 2008 1,048,185 57,874 6.3%

2009 ** 22,041 62,877 99,355 184,273 2009 1,061,325 56,703 10.8%

2010 *** 21,349 63,264 102,372 186,985 2010 1,073,055 n/a 11.3%

2011 *** 21,349 63,264 102,372 186,985 2011 1,056,064 n/a 11.0%

2012 *** 21,349 65,664 (3) 105,508 (3) 192,521 2012 1,066,602 (3) n/a 9.4%

2013 *** 21,349 65,664 105,508 192,521 2013 1,074,702 57,264 7.3%

Average (10 years) 21,714 62,901 100,307 184,921

As a % of Total 12% 34% 54% 100%

Source:

* 2004 = Census 2000 Demographic Highlights

** 2005 - 2009 = Census Bureau's Population Estimates Program 2005-2009 American Community Survey

*** 2010 - 2013 = Census People Quick Facts, population, 2010 or 2012 latest estimates available.

Notes: Data shown as n/a denotes information is not available. 

The District is located in Contra Costa County and serves 3 cities (Bay Point, Pittsburg and Antioch) within the County.

(3)
 Revisions.

DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT

Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal or Calendar Years

 
(2)

 Contra Costa County Comprehensive Annual Financial Report FY2012-2013, statiscal section, demographic and economic statistics. County data is presented by 

fiscal year. 

Calendar Year

 
(1)

 U.S. Census Bureau - Fact Sheets (population). Census data is available by calendar year.

Population Estimates for the District's Service Area
 (1)

Contra Costa County 
(2)
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Date of Formation 1955

Number of employees (FTE) 74.80

Governing Body

Services

Service Areas in Contra Costa County Square 

Miles

Population 

Estimates 
(1)

Per Capita 

Income 
(2)

Unemployment 

Rate 
(3)

Bay Point (Un-incorporated) 6.55 21,349 18,844 13.6%

Pittsburg (City) 17.22 65,664 22,981 10.9%

Antioch (City) 28.35 105,508 25,245 7.7%

Total 52.12 192,521

Weighted Average Unemployment (based on est. population for 3 cities) 9.4%

Facilities:

Number of Treatment Plants 1 Number of Recycled Water Plants 1

Miles of Sanitary Sewer 71 Miles of Recycled Water Main 14.2

Number of Pump Stations 5 Number of Recycled Water Reservoirs 3

Number of Household Hazardouse Waste Facility 1

Source:  Delta Diablo Sanitation District Records 
(1)

(2)

(3) State of California, Employment Development Department, Monthly Labor Force Data for Cities and Census Designated 

Places (2013 Preliminary , data not seasonally adjusted)

DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT

About the District

U.S. Census Bureau, State & County Quick Facts, 2012 Dollars

Demographic and Economic Statistics Section of this report.

Wastewater treatment and disposal, Recycled Water, Household Hazardous Waste Facility, 

Streetsweeping and Wastewater collection for Bay Point.

(3) Appointed Members of the Board (The Mayors of the City of Pittsburg (or Designee) 

and City of Antioch (or Designee), and the Contra Costa County Supervisor for Bay Point.

69



2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Department/Function

Administration  6.00 6.00 5.00 7.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00

Public Information 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Sub-total Administrative Services Department 7.00 7.00 6.00 8.00 9.00 9.00 9.00 9.00 9.00 9.00

Human resources and Safety 1.70 1.70 1.70 2.00 2.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00

Finance 4.80 5.80 3.43 4.43 5.43 5.80 5.80 5.80 5.80 5.80

Information systems 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00

Puchasing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 1.00

Sub-total Business Services Department 8.50 9.50 7.13 8.43 11.43 12.80 12.80 12.80 12.80 11.80

Engineering and Construction 5.00 7.00 8.00 7.00 9.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00

Sub-total Engineering Services 5.00 7.00 8.00 7.00 9.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00

Maintenance 17.00 17.00 16.00 15.00 16.00 19.00 19.00 19.00 18.00 18.00

Collection 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00

Plant Operations 16.00 16.00 15.00 16.00 16.00 17.00 18.00 18.00 18.00 18.00

Laboratory, pre-treatment and pollution prevention 6.50 6.50 6.50 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 6.00 6.00

Sub-total Operational Services 41.50 41.50 39.50 40.00 41.00 45.00 46.00 46.00 44.00 44.00

Total Number of Employees 62.00 65.00 60.63 63.43 70.43 76.80 77.80 77.80 75.80 74.80

Total Number of Retirees 
(1)

14.00 15.00 19.00 21.00 21.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 28.00 31.00

Source:

Note:

DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT

Number of District Employees By Department/Function - Operating Information

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(1) 
Retiree count does not include spouses.

In FY2005-2006, the Board approved a new organizational structure based on the District's Strategic 

Management Plan.  Implementation was completed in FY2009-2010.

Does not include Board members, temporary and/or summer co-op interns.

Delta Diablo Sanitation District Payroll and Financial Records

Fiscal Year Ending June 30
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Year Unit 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Program

Wastewater (WW)

Number of Treatment Plants CY 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Miles of Sanitary Sewer CY 69 71 71 71 71 71 71 71 71 71

Number of Pump Stations CY 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5

Annual Average Influent Flow 
(1)

CY mgd 14.5 14.6 14.7 14.2 13.4 13.2 13.4 13.5 13.2 13.0

Treatment Plant Capacity (ADWF) CY mgd 16.5 16.5 16.5 16.5 16.5 16.5 16.5 16.5 16.5 16.5

Average Dry Weather Flow (ADWF) 
(1)

CY mgd 14.2 14.2 14.2 14.0 12.9 12.8 13.2 13.2 12.7 13.1

Recycled Water (RW)

Number of Recycled Water Reservoirs 
(2)

CY 1.0 1.0 1.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0

Miles of Recycled Water Mains 
(2)

CY 4.3 4.3 4.3 8.0 8.0 8.0 14.2 14.2 14.2 14.2

Storage Capacity of Recycled Water Reservoir 
(2)

CY mg 1.8 1.8 1.8 2.9 2.9 2.9 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0

Annual Average Recycled Water Produced 
(3)

CY mgd 5.9 7.0 6.3 7.2 6.1 6.6 5.6 5.8 7.9 8.0

Average Dry Weather Flow (ADWF) 
(3)

CY mgd 5.7 6.4 6.4 7.5 4.9 6.3 4.8 4.6 8.3 8.6

Year Unit 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Household Hazardous Waste (HHW)

Number of Households (est) FY 83,815 86,388 88,846 91,597 94,947 96,815 97,112 97,714 95,064 95,626

Total Number of Vehicles 
(4)

FY 5,270 5,586 7,550 8,406 9,722 11,562 12,544 12,661 14,345 14,609

Total Participation Rate 
(5)

FY 6.3% 6.5% 8.5% 9.2% 10.2% 11.9% 12.9% 13.0% 15.1% 17.0%

Total Tons of Waste Collected 
(6)

FY 271 289 335 371 411 453 518 562 498 434

Total Percent of Waste Recycled FY 63.5% 64.7% 64.8% 71.9% 73.2% 75.7% 77.1% 78.2% 74.9% 77.6%

Street Sweeping

Annual Curb Miles Swept CY 23,076 23,315 23,654 24,431 25,127 24,816 25,070 25,114 25,380 25,380

Collection

Miles of Collection Sewer Lines 
(7)

CY 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 43

Source: Delta Diablo Sanitation District Records

Note: 
(1)

 In 2013, Wastewater Annual Average Influent Flow decreased slightly due to drier weather.  The Average Dry Weather Flow increased slightly and corresponds to the slight increase in population.
(2)

 Recycled water Pittsburg was completed in 2007 and Recycled water Antioch  was completed in 2010.
(3)

 Increases in Recycled water produced and ADWF in 2013 was due to additional irrigation use sites and increased water consumption by Calpine, the District's largest Recycled water customer. 
(4)

 Actual no. of vehicles driving by the District's HHW Facilities dropping off Household Hazardous Waste and Ewaste. 
(5)

 Revision made on prior years to include revised Ewaste participation. 
(6)

 Decline in total tons of waste collected due lighter, less bulkier HHW and Ewaste received compared to prior year.
(7) 

Collection Sewer Lines are included in the Total Miles of Sanitary Sewer under Wastewater.

mgd = million gallons per day, mg = million gallons

DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT

Operating and Capital Indicators by Program - Operating Information

Last Ten Fiscal (FY) or Calendar Years (CY)
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